CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS

COMPREHENSIVE
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2009

Prepared and Issued by
The Financial Management Department

RON E. NEUFELD
Director of Financial Management



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Letter of TransSmittal........ooov it sre e sedse et e sen s sn e e s s e e s rra e sranas s ran e s eneas vrns 1
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting ........cocovcciiinninnan. 9
OFficers and OffiCIAIS ......vi e et tee et csstb e ssabn e s rnn it e e rens 10
Organization Chart............ccci i 11
AUDITOR’S REPORT
Independent Auditor's REport ... 12
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS........oooierrieiiee e nes e 14
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
City-Wide Financial Statements:
Statement of Net ASSEES . ... e e s e 26
Statement of ACHVIEIES .....ooviii et r sttt cna e e e 27
Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet — Governmental FUNTS .......cccoeeeiiiier e 28
Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to Statement
OF NBE ASBEES Lo i et e s e e s e e e 29
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances —
GOVEMIMENLAI FUNGS ..ot ciieiiiitier st eseessrrereaeeeeesaessermnrrneassessossbbabtanesesenesnasbns 30
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to Statement of Activities..................... Y|
Statement of Net Assets — Proprietary FUNGS.........ccovinni 33
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets —
Proprictary FUNAS ....oooeirie et 34
Statement of Cash Flows — Proprietary FUnds ..o 35
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets — Pension Trust Funds..........cccinn 36
Statement of Changes in Net Assets — Pension Trust Funds ... 37
Notes to Financial Statements.......cccc.cc e crsr 38



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of FUNDING PrOGrESS.......ccviviiieie ettt et ee e e e eereers e e senestessesseesensenss 83
Schedule of Employer ContribUtiONS.........ccovcveeiecicecr et 84
Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Cash Basis (Non-GAAP) Budget and Actual — General and Library Funds.................. 85
Notes to Required Supplementary Information...........ccccoovvveieeennne. ettt e 87
OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
Nonmajor Governmental FUNAS ...............c..ooooviiiiiiiiiiee et e e, 88
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Governmental Funds..............ccoooovevevevvennnn g0
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances - Nonmajor Governmental FUNAS.........coouovieicioic oo eeee e 91
Special Revenue Funds
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmaijor Special Revenue Funds..........cccoveievvevenn, 92
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances - Nonmajor Special Revenue FUNdS .......c.cocoooveeevcieieiee e 94

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Cash Basis (Non-GAAP) Budget and Actual — lllinois Municipal

Retirement FUNG ...ttt et e e s 96
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Cash Basis (Non-GAAP) Budget and Actual — Main Place Section 108 Loan

GUAFRANTEE FUNG....eveeiceieeietcceeee ettt et et r e entss e s et seereeneessaeens 97
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Cash Basis (Non-GAAP) Budget and Actual — Home Fund............occvvveervevreenenn.. 98

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Cash Basis (Non-GAAP) Budget and Actual — Community

Development BIOCK GIant..........cc.ovieiieeieieis it e ee e s e et eeeraens 99
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Cash Basis (Non-GAAP) Budget and Actual — TIF Districts Fund ..........ccoveeuvn.. 100

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Cash Basis (Non-GAAP) Budget and Actual — Drug Enforcement Fund .............. 101



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Cash Basis (Non-GAAP) Budget and Actual — Municipal Band Fund................... 102
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Cash Basis (Non-GAAP) Budget and Actual — Motor Fuel Tax Fund................... 103
Debt Service Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —

Cash Basis {Non-GAAF) Budget and Actual — Debt Service Fund....................... 104
Capital Projects Funds
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds...........cccocvveevievinen. 106
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances Nonmajor Capital Projects FUNGS .......ccvvoeeeveveeesce e 106
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —

Cash Basis (Non-GAAP) Budget and Actual — 2004 Bond Capital Fund.............. 107

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Cash Basis (Non-GAAP) Budget and Actual ~ General Capital Project Fund ...... 108
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Cash Basis (Non-GAAP) Budget and Actual — Letter of Credit Project Fund........108
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

Cash Basis (Non-GAAP) Budget and Actual — Wabash Crossing

Letter of Credit FUNG ...t st 110
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Cash Basis (Non-GAAP) Budget and Actual — 2008 Project Fund ........ccccoveuv 111
Nonmajor Proprietary FUNAS ... 112
Combining Statement of Net Assets — Nonmajor Proprietary Funds ...........cccvoeveaei, 113
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assetfs —
Nonmajor Proprietary FUNAS........ccooiiiiiii it cessens e 114

Combining Statement of Cash Flows — Nonmajor Proprietary Funds............cocooveen 115



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE
Internal Service FUNAS ............ccoooiiiii e e e 116
Combining Statement of Net Assets — Internal Service Funds........c.cccoev e 117
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets —
INternal SEIVICE FUNGS ....oovcctieiciiceceecece ettt e e 118
Combining Statement of Cash Flows — Internal Service Funds .........ccccoovvveevvvreinenn. 119
FIdUCTary FUNAS ... ..ottt et ee e aas 120
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets — Pension Trust Funds........................ 121
Combining Statement of Changes in Net Assets — Pension Trust Funds ................... 122
STATISTICAL SECTION ..ottt et e st ree e e eesseere e sessansserseesteeesnen 123
Net Assets by Component — All Available Years.........occoveviveciiiicn e, 124
Changes in Net Assets — Last TEN YEAIS ..ov.vvvvviveieive et er e 125
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds —Last Ten Years ..., 127
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds — All Available Years...................... 128
Significant Own Source Revenue — Water Utility — Last Ten Years .........ccecvvveeceeenenn. 129
Revenue Rates — Water Utility — Last Ten Years.......ccccocvvee vt 130
Summary of Principal Payers — All Available Years ..o 131
Significant Own Source Revenue — Property Tax — Last Ten Years.........coccocveevvvveeennn, 132
Property Tax Rates — Direct and Overlapping Governmental Units
LASE TN YIS ..c.ueiiieiieeicie ettt et b et e e e e ean e reeanssensanssereessonesesaean 133
MEJOr PropertY TaXPAYEIS. . .c.ecicieeeereerieeereiesesareesneresesseesesreesesrsenesssesesseseessessasessssssnnes 134
Property Tax Levies and Tax Collections ~ Last Ten Years...........ccccoveeviveverieeniiene e 135
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property — Last Ten Years....... 136
TaX INFOMMIALION ..ot e s e e st estesbeaan et eeere s 137
City Government Tax Rates - Last Ten Years ...t 138
City Government Tax Levies - Last Ten Years .......cc.ccoocveeeiicecice e 139
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type —Last TEN YEars........cc.cccevvivveeeve i 140
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Qutstanding — Last Ten Years......oocoovevveiiieiicnccen 141
Schedule of Direct and Overlapping Debt.........ccvvveeieieeieeeceee et e 142
Demographics and Economic Statistics — Last Ten Years........ccocvvvieeeiieieiiccvii e 143
Principal Employers — Current Year and Nine Years Ago........ccccooveceveveereeeeeneeeeireennenn. 144
Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function —
LASE TN Y BAIS ..ottt e r et it e erae e st e eabeensetaeereas 145
Operating Indicators by Function — Last Ten Years ... 146

Capital Assets by Function — All Available YEars..........cccovvvvverevcrieeeiiecnricse v e 147



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWAITS ............ccooveeeeoee oo e 148
Notes to Scheduie of Expenditures of Federal AWArdS. .........ocooveeeeeeee oo e eee e, 150

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Contro! Over Financial

Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit

of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government

AUTIING SEANGAITS ..coveeviee et easeeseeae et e eeraesseas e 151
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance With Reguirements

Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over

Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133 . ... ere e, 153
Schedule of Findings and Questioned CostS...........c.ccveiiieiiiee e 155
Schedule of Status of Prior FINAINGS. ...ttt e e aser s 158



CITY OF DECATUR ILLINOIS

#1 GARY K. ANDERSON PLAZA DECATUR, ILLINOIS 62523-1196

October 21, 2009

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Decatur '
Decatur, Illinois 62523

- The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Decatur, Tllincis for the year ended

~ April 30, 2009, is hereby submitted. This report represents a comprehensive and detailed picture
of our financial transactions during fiscal year 2008-2009 and the financial condition of the
various funds at April 30, 2009. This report was prepared by the City’s Department of Financial
Management. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and
fairness of the presentation, including all the disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of our
knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a
manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various
funds and component units of the City, All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the City’s financial activities have been included.

The financial reporting entity includes all of the funds of the psimary government (the City of
Decatur as legally defined), as well as all of its component units. We have addressed all
potential component units. We have determined that DCDF, Inc. although a legally separate
entity is part of the City’s operations and should be included as part of the primary government.
Accordingly, DCDF, Inc. is reported as an enterprise fund of the City. We have determined that
the Civic Center Authority is fiscally dependent upon the City and is discretely presented in the
financial statements. See Note 1-A for a more detailed explanation of the blended and discretely
presented component units.

The City of Decatur was incorporated in 1836, and since 1971 has operated as a home rule unit
of local government pursuant to the Illinois Constitution. The City has a managerial form of
government, under which the elected Mayor and City Council discharge the legislative function
and establish municipal policy, and an appointed City Manager is responsible for all
administrative functions. The City provides the full range of municipal services contemplated,
by state or character. This includes police, fire, water, streets, public improvements, planning,

zoning, and general administrative services. '
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Unemployment Figures
April 2005  April 2006 April 2007  April 2008  April 2009

Decatur Metro Area 6.0% 6.1% 5.2% 5.7% . 0.8%
State 5.8% 5.0% 4.8% 5.4% 9.4%
National 5.2% 4.7% 4.5% 5.0% 9.0%

While the overall rate in the Decatur Metro Area is slightly higher than the state and national
economy, many of those currently unemployed are a result of a temporary layoff by one of
Decatur’s largest employers. The expectation is that these employees will be called back.

Wabash Crossing had its official groundbreaking in October 2003. The Hope VI project has
been in the development stage since 1999 when the federal government awarded the Decatur
Housing Authority a $35 million Hope VI grant. The City of Decatur has contributed millions of
dollars to the project by purchasing over 400 blighted and neglected homes and demolishing
them. The vacant land, in excess of 120 acres, has been contributed to the Wabash Crossing
project. The City, Decatur Housing Authority and East Lake Management and Development
Corp. have entered into a three party agreement to build a multimillion dollar Wabash Crossing
housing development on the City’s near north side. The vision is to rebuild the area using a
combination of mixed income housing and retail businesses that will attract a diverse population.

Phase 1 of Wabash Crossing, which included 206 rental units, was completed in 2005. City
officials estimate that this development will bring in more than $115 million in new community
investment. Funded in part through a $34.5 million Hope VI grant from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development, the plan is expected to bring a brand new community to a part
of the City just north of the central business district through the addition of more than 600 new
homes, retail and social service options. Additionally, the Decatur School District built a new
school in the neighborhood as part of its $27 million capital improvement program. '

Phase II, which is now complete, is the continvation of redeveloping the Near North
neighborhood with a mixed-use development including single, duplex, fourplex and multi-family
units. Of the total units, 175 rental units will be located in 38 buildings and 27 owner-occupied
units will house single-family residences. Phase III, which is nearing completion, includes 90
units in 30 building of five different types over a development site of approximately 21.5 acres.

Cancer Care Specialists of Central [linois and Decatur Memorial Hospital are nearing
completion of a 55,400 square foot facility, which will unite outpatient radiation oncology,
medical oncology, medical imaging, and cancer research under one roof. The original estimated
cost at the start of the project was $15.0 million. o '
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St. Mary’s Hospital is completing a 35,000 square foot addition to the existing building, which
will contain a new lobby, gift shop, chapel, and outpatient services. The estimated cost of the-
project was $17.0 million. This is the first phase of a multi-year project that will encompass
approximately 100,000 square feet in newly constructed and renovated space, and will cost about
$35.0 million.

The City Council approved a downtown redevelopment project by Reynolds Development, LLC
to build a new 95,000 square foot structure, which will be used for office, retail and commercial
development. The proposed project was expected to exceed $12.4 million, and is expected to
spark $20.0 million in total public and private reinvestment in downtown Decatur.

Archer Daniel’s Midland in partnership with the Midwest Geological Sequestration Consortium,
are just completing the first large-scale carbon dioxide injection well in the United States for
CO; sequestration, more than a mile beneath the earth’s surface. The estimated cost of the
project is $84.3 million and is expected to create 250 full-time jobs.

Star Tek call center has made the decision to add 300 new employees and take the facility’s
workforce from 270 to nearly 600 employees, which will make Star Tek one of Decatur’s larger
employers. The facility opened its doors in 2003, and is currently providing wireless customer
service for one of the largest U.S. telecommunications companies.

Caterpillar Inc. has announced that its off-highway truck production will expand in the Decatur
plant. Five facilities in Illinois will be affected as a part of a $1.0 billion investment from 2008
to 2010. '

Caterpillar and Secure Energy, LLC have begun construction of a new coal-to-syngas plant in
Decatur. The new facility, which plans to make natural gas from coal, is due to come on line by
2011. Secure Energy expects the facility to consume up to 600,000 tons of coal annually. The
technology will provide a stable domestic supply of natural gas. The cost of construction is
estimated to be $550 million and will create 60 full-time jobs in addition to construction jobs and
supporting jobs in trucking and mining.

Primrose Retirement, a senior retirement community, has completed construction in Decatur.
The development includes a 68-unit independent and assisted living two-story apartment
building with exterior garages, and 25 independent living villa units with attached garages .
providing housing for seniors.

The former Wagner Castings/Intermet foundry site has been sold to a group of Pennsylvania-
based investors. They have a background in brownfields redevelopment and environmental
clean-up. Tt is expected that the cleanup will cost $2.0 million and when it is completed, the
property will be redeveloped.



MAJOR INITIATIVES
The City of Decatur continues to have a very aggressive capital improvement program. Some of
the infrastructure projects and programs for 2008-09, which total more than $16.4 million,

include:

Street Repairs and Maintenance - § 9,461,000

General Capital Projects 336,000
Equipment Replacement 2,368,000
Sewer Repairs : 1,064,000
Dredging Lake Decatur 1,146,000
Water Plant Improvements 1,646,000

Lake and Distribution Improvements 369,000

As can be seen, the City Council has dedicated substantial funds to maintain and improve its
infrastructure, including water system improvements, street and road repairs, drainage
improvements and sewer repairs. They have also been diligent to replace other equipment as
needed.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operation of the funds is accounted for by a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and as applicable,
expenditures. The individual funds account for the governmental resources allocated to them for
the purpose of carrying on specific activities, in accordance with special regulations, restrictions,
or limitations.

Brief Overview of City Funds
Funds are arranged as follows:
L. MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

A. General Fund
B. Library Fund

~II. NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
A. Special Revenue Funds

B. Debt Service Funds
C. Capital Projects Funds



III. MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

A. Water Fund
B. Mass Transit Fund
"C. Hotel Fund

IV. NON-MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
V. INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
VI. FIDUCIARY FUNDS

VI COMPONENT UNIT

A. Civic Center Authority

City-wide financial statements - These statements are prepared on an accrual basis of accounting,
which is similar to the basis of accounting followed by most businesses.

Fund financial statements - These statements present information for individual major funds
rather than by fund type. Nonmajor funds are presented in total in one column. Governmental
funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting and include a reconciliation to the
governmental activities accrual information presented in the City-wide financial statements.
Proprietary and Fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting.

As a part of this new reporting model, management is responsible for preparing a Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of the City. This discussion follows the Independent Auditor’s Report,
providing an assessment of the City finances for 2009 and a comparison, where available, to
performance in 2008, a description of significant capital asset and long-term debt activity during
the year and analysis of resources available for the future.

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control
structure designed to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or
misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal
control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of the control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and the evaluation of costs and benefits
requires estimates and judgments by management. All internal control evaluations occur within
the above framework.

Single Audit

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, we are responsible for ensuring that an
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and
regulations related to these programs. The internal conirol structure is subject to periodic
evaluation by management and internal audit.



As a part of the City’s single audit, which was described earlier, tests are made to determine the
adequacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal financial
assistance programs, as well as to determine that the City complied with applicable laws-and
regulations. We believe that the City’s internal accounting controls adequately safeguard assets
and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.

Budgetary Controls

The City maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in
the annual appropriated budget approved by the City Council. Activities of the general, special
revenue, capital projects, internal service, and enterprise funds except for Motor Fuel Tax, Debt
Service, DCDF Inc., and the non-tax levy portion of Fire and Police Pension Funds are included
in the annual appropriated budget. Supplemental appropriations recommended by staff must be
approved by the Council. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures
cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is by division within the General Fund; by
similar divisions within the Water Fund; and at the fund level for all other funds. Therefore,
expenditures within a given fund cannot legally exceed appropriations at these levels. The City
also maintains an encumbrance accounting system as a technique of accomplishing budgetary
control. Estimated purchase amounts are first compared to the available appropriations prior to
the release of purchase orders to vendors and outstanding purchase orders are subtracted from the
available appropriations on the monthly report. All unexpended encumbrances lapse at year end
and must be re-appropriated in the subsequent year’s budget. As demonstrated by the statements
and schedules inciuded in the financial section of the report, the City continues to meet its
responsibility for sound financial management.

CASH MANAGEMENT

As of April 30, 2009 approximately 100 percent of the idle but obligated funds were invested to
interest-bearing securities. The City has adopted formal investment policies and procedures as
required by state statutes and approved by the City Council. The City’s investment policy also
established maximum limits for investments in non-collateralized certificates of deposit, and
money market accounts. The City has also entered into joint custody agreements with the five
largest banks in the City. These institutions have agreed to place a specified amount of U.S.
government securities as collateral for the City’s bank deposits at the Federal Reserve banks in
Chicago and St. Louis, and are in the City’s name: The participating banks may not reduce the
pledged investments in these accounts without written approval of the City. The City’s
investment policy provides for the limited investment in commercial paper in only the top rated
commercial paper issued by major corporations.

The City operates a pooled cash and investment program where similar funds are recorded in one
bank account, which allows for larger investments with slightly longer maturities. This results in
higher investment earnings for those funds with relatively small average cash balances. Monthly
interest income earned by each pool is distributed to the individual funds based upon its average
daily cash balance. :



RISK MANAGEMENT

Decatur is self insured for comprehensive general liability, employee dishonesty, automotive,
property damage, workers compensation, medical and unemployment compensation. The self
insurance fund is used by the City to pay the costs of the self insurance program. Resources
accurnulate in this fund for payment of claims. In addition, various safety and risk control
techniques including accident and prevention training have been implemented during the year to
help minimize accident related losses. :

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit

State statutes require an audit by independent certified public accountants. The audit was
performed by Clifton Gunderson LLP. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state
statutes, the audit was also designed to meet the requirements of the Federal Single Audit Act
and the related U.S. Management and Budget’s Circular A-133. Generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards set forth in the General Accounting Office’s Government Auditing
Standards were used by the auditors in conducting the engagement. The auditor’s report on the
general purpose financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and
schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The auditor’s reports on internal
controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations can be found in the Single Audit
section of this report.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of
Decatur for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2008.
This was the thirty-sixth consecutive year that the City of Decatur has received this prestigious
award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. This report
must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate. - '



Use of the Report

The GFOA reports a growing awareness that the annual financial report should be management’s
report to its governing body, constituents, oversight bodies, resource providers, investors and
creditors. We agree with this direction, and in keeping with past practices will send a copy of the
report to the City’s elected officials, City senior maragement personnel, bond rating agencies,
bond depositories, the City’s library, and other agencies, such as, financial institutions and
governmental agencies which have expressed an interest in Decatur’s financial affairs.

In addition to the vast amount of financial information presented, there is included herein a
Statistical Section containing comprehensive data which relates to the financial condition of the
entire governmental structure of Decatur. There is also a section referred to as Management’s
Discussion and Analysis which provides additional information about the past year in the city.
While it is not filled with detailed financial statements, it does give a clearer picture of what has
taken place over the past year. Use of this report by the elected officials and department
directors of the City is encouraged when furnishing information in a uniform manner on a
nationwide level, making this report more valuable to those desiring information on the financial
and operational abilities of the city.
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7| Clifton
| Gunderson LLP

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

Independent Auditor's Report

The Mayor and City Council
City of Decatur, lllinois

‘We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of Decatur, lllinois (City) as of and for the year ended April 30, 2009, which collectively comprise
the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the City of Decatur, 1llinois' management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial
statements of the Civic Center Authority, which is included as a discretely presented component
unit. These financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been fumnished
fo us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for such component units, is
based solely on the report of other auditors. The financial statements of the Civic Center Authority
were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Audifing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Decatur, llinois as of April 30, 2009 and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October
21, 2008, on our consideration of the City of Decatur, lllinois’ internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should
be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

The management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of
funding progress for lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund, and schedule of employer contributions are
not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Decatur, lllinois’ basic financial statements. The combining and
individual fund statements and schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the hasic financial statements taken as a whole.

The introductory section and statistical tables listed in the table of contents have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Danville, Ninois
October 21, 2009
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
April 30,2009

As management of the City of Decatur (“City™), we offer readers of the City’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal
year ended April 30, 2009. Since the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A™) is
designed to focus on the current year’s activities, resulting changes and currently known facts, it
should be read in conjunction with the City’s financial statements.

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances. Questions concerning this report or requests for
additional financial information should be directed to the Director of Financial Management,
City of Decatur, #1 Gary K. Anderson Plaza, Decatur, Illinois, 62523,

Financial Highlights

While the national and state economies have fallen on hard times, Decatur continues to enjoy
many new projects that promise to create new jobs and hundreds of millions of dollars in new
investments in the community.

In 1999 the Decatur Housing Authority received a $34.8 million HOPE VI grant to demolish the
Longview Place public housing development and build a new mixed income community called
Wabash Crossing. The plan was to build the new development in three phases. The first phase
of 206 rental units and the second phase of 175 units are already complete. Phase III includes 90
units in 30 buildings of five different types over a development site of approximately 21.5 acres.
Phase III is nearing completion.

Cancer Care Specialists of Central Illinois and Decatur Memorial Hospital are nearing
completion of a 55,400 square foot facility which will unite outpatient radiation oncology,
medical oncology, medical imaging, and cancer research under one roof. The original estimated
cost of the project was $15.0 million,

St. Mary’s Hospital is completing a 35,000 square foot addition to the existing building which
will contain a new lobby, gift shop, chapel, and outpatient services. The estimated cost of the
project was $17.0 million, This is the first phase of the multi-year project that will encompass
approximately 100,000 square feet in newly constructed and renovated space, and will cost about
$35.0 million.

A major step in the revitalization of Downtown Decatur has been taken with the construction of
the Reynolds Development Project. The 95,000 square foot facility, which will house offices for
Regions Bank and Consociate/Dansig, is expected to spark $20.0 million in total public and
private reinvestment in downtown Decatur. The buildings timeless design will help it blend in
with other architecture in downtown, and will eventually include a restaurant, two retailers and
an executive suite for small businesses.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
April 30, 2009

Archer Daniel’s Midland in partnership with the Midwest Geological Sequestration Consortium,
are just completing the first large-scale carbon dioxide injection well in the United States for
CO; sequestration, more than a mile beneath the earth’s surface. The estimated cost of the
project is $84.3 million and is expected to create 250 full-time jobs,

Star Tek call center has made the decision to add 300 new employees and take the facility’s
workforce from 270 to nearly 600 employees, which will make Star Tek one of Decatur’s larger
employers. The facility opened its doors in 2003, and is currently providing wireless customer
service for one of the largest U.S. telecommunications companies.

Caterpillar Inc. has announced that its off-highway truck production will expand in the Decatur
plant, Five facilities in Illinois will be affected as a part of a $1.0 billion investment from 2008
to 2010,

Caterpillar and Secure Energy, LLC have begun construction of a new coal-to-syngas plant in
Decatur. The new facility, which plans to make natural gas from coal, is due to come on line by
2011. Secure Energy expects the facility to consume up to 600,000 tons of coal annually. The
technology will provide a stable domestic supply of natural gas using the abundant supply of
high-sulfur Illinois coal in an extremely low-emissions process. The cost of construction is
estimated to be $550 million and will create 60 full-time jobs in addition to construction jobs and
supporting jobs in trucking and mining.

Primrose Retirement, a senior retirement community, has completed construction in Decatur,
The development includes a 68-unit independent and assisted living two-story apartment
building with exterior garages, and 25 independent living villa units with attached garages
providing housing for seniors.

The former Wagner Castings/Intermet foundry site has been sold to a group of Pennsylvania-
based investors, which have the collective background in brownfields redevelopment and
environmental clean-up. An environmental clean-up of the property, estimated at $2.0 million, is
now underway, and when completed the property will be redeveloped.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.
This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial
statements,

15



CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
April 30, 2009

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The statement
of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time increases or decreases in net assets may serve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows,
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in
cash flows in future fiscal periods.

The Governmental Activities reflect the City’s basic services, including administration, public
safety, highways and streets and culture and recreation. Property taxes, shared state taxes and
local utility taxes finance the majority of these services, The Business-Type Activities reflect
private sector type operations, where the fee for service typically covers all or most of the cost of
operations, including depreciation.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can
be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than
that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information
presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities
in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the City’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities,
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
April 30, 2009

The City maintains 16 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General Fund and Library Fund, each
considered to be a major fund. Information from the City’s 14 other governmental funds are
combined into a single column presentation. Individual fund information for these non-major
governmental funds is provided elsewhere in the report.

The City maintains two types of proprietary funds (enterprise and internal service funds).
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water,
parking, mass transit, various housing programs, waste removal, and sewer operations. Internal
service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among
the City’s various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for its fleet
maintenance, self-insurance, management information services and equipment replacement.
Because each of these services predominantly benefits governmental rather than business-type
functions, they have been primarily included within governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements,

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water
Fund, the Mass Transit Fund, and the Hotel Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds
of the City. Conversely, all of the internal service funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the internal
service funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The accounting
used for fiduciary funds is similar to that used by proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
information provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements, this report also includes certain required
supplementary information related to budgetary information and the City’s progress in funding
its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Non-major fund information can be
found immediately following the required supplementary information.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
April 30, 2009

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
Statement of Net Assets

The following chart reflects the condensed statement of net assets (in millions):

Total
Governmental Business-Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
2009 2009 2009
Assets:
Current & other assets $ 46.1 § 294 $ 755
Capital assets 75.3 62.0 137.3
Total assets 121.4 91.4 212.8
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 28.2 22 30.4
Long-term liabilities 52.2 12.2 64.4
Total liabilities 80.4 14.4 94.8
Net Assets:
Invested in capital
assets, net 17.3 56.7 74.0
Unrestricted 23.7 20.3 44.0
Total Net Assets g 410 $ 77.0 $ 118.0
Total
Governmental Business-Type Primary
Activities Activities Government
2008 2008 2008
Assets:
Current & other assets $ 438 $ 285 $ 723
Capital assets 75.3 71.5 146.8
Total assets 119.1 100.0 219.1
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 29,5 2.8 32.3
Long-term liabilities 46,2 12.6 58.8
Total liabilities 75.7 15.4 91.1
Net Assets:
Invested in capital
assets, net 59.3 504 1187
Unrestricted (15.7 25.2 9.3
Total Net Assets g 434 5 84.6 $ 128.0

By far, the largest portion of the City’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets, less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The City uses these capital
assets to provide services; consequently they are not available for future spending. 62,7 percent
of the net assets are invested in capital assets.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
April 30, 2009

Net assets in governmental activities total $41.0 million, a decrease of $2.4 million from the
prior year. Long term debt is $61.9 million, of which only $9.7 million must be retired within
the next twelve months, The City’s liquidity position is very good with total assets at $121.4
million, with only $28.2 million in current liabilities.

Net assets in business-type activities total $77.0 million, a decrease of $7.6 million from the prior
year. There is a total decrease in net assets invested in capital assets of $2.7 million. The current
year depreciation is $4.5 million. Liabilities have decreased §1.0 million.

The following chart reflects the condensed statement of activities (in millions):

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Government
2009 2009 2009
REVENUES
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 22 $ 16.1 $ 183
Oper. Grants/Contrib. 6.0 4.4 10.4
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 12.4 0.2 12.6
Sales Taxes 23.1 0.0 23.1
Other 19.5 1.0 20.5
Total Revenues 63.2 21.7 84.9
EXPENSES
General Government 11.7 0.0 11.7
Public Safety 36.9 0.0 36.9
Public Works 16.4 0.0 16.4
Culture and Recreation 4.4 0.0 4.4
Interest on Debt 3.6 0.0 3.6
Water 0.0 13.8 13.8
Parking 0.0 0.7 0.7
Mass Transit 0.0 5.7 5.7
Housing Programs 0.0 0.0 0.0
Waste Removal 0.0 0.6 0.6
Hotel 0.0 0.0 0.0
Sewer 0.0 1.5 1.5
Total Expenses 73.0 22.3 95.3
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues over expenses (9.8) (0.6) (10.4)
Transfers 7.0 (7.00 0.0
Change in Net Assets § (2.8) $ (7.6) $ (10.4)
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

April 30, 2009
Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Government
2008 2008 2008

REVENUES
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 2.1 $ 16.6 $ 187

Oper. Grants/Contrib. 6.5 4.1 10.6
General Revenues:

Property Taxes 12.1 0.2 12.3

Sales Taxes 231 0.0 23.1

Other 19.7 0.9 20.6
Total Revenues 63.5 21.8 85.3
EXPENSES

General Government 12.9 0.0 12.9

Public Safety 33.9 0.0 33.9

Public Works 15.6 0.0 15.6

Culture and Recreation 4.4 0.0 4.4

Interest on Debt 3.1 0.0 3.1

Water 0.0 13.2 13.2

Parking 0.0 0.8 0.8

Mass Transit 0.0 5.8 5.8

Housing Programs 0.0 0.0 0.0

Waste Removal 0.0 0.5 0.5

Hotel 0.0 0.3 0.3

Sewer 0.0 1.3 1.3
Total Expenses 69.9 21.9 91.8
Excess (Deficiency) of

Revenues over expenses (6.4 0.1 (6.5)

Transfers 6.6 (6.6) 0.0
Change in Net Assets § 02 § _(6.7) $ (6.5

The change in net assets reflects a decrease in governmental activities of $2.8 million and in
business-type activities a decrease of $7.6 million. The total government wide change in net
assets is a decrease of $10.4 million.

Last year’s change in business-type net assets was negative $6.7 million; this year it is negative
$7.6 million.



CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
April 30, 2009

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS
Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on the near-term inflows,
outflows and balances of spendable resources, In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year.

As of the end of the fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reporied combined ending fund
balances of $22.2 million, an increase of approximately $4.2 million from the prior year. The
increase was due to funding from other sources such as sale of bonds and other forms of debt
service. The decrease of General Fund ending balance was due primarily to the settlement of
two large labor contracts that were in negotiations for more than two years.

The following chart reflects the condensed statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund
balances (in millions).

Major
Governmental Funds Nonmajor
General Library Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Total
Revenues $ 471 $4.1 $ 12.0 $63.2
Expenditures 542 3.9 19.4 71.5
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

over Expenditures (7.1} 0.2 (7.4) (14.3)

Other Financing Sources 3.3 0.0 15.3 18.6
Net Change in Fund Balances (3.8) 0.2 7.9 4.3
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 11.6 0.6 5.7 17.9
Fund Balance at End of Year § 718 $0.8 $ 136 §22.2

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
April 30, 2009

There was an operating loss of $1.3 million in the Water Fund this year. If you consider the
transfers to other funds, the change in net assets is a negative $7.1 million. This is due to
increased capital expenditures and transfers to the debt service fund. The City Council approved
a 45% increase in water rates over three years, which should help resolve the negative change in
net assets. The $.7 million negative change in Mass Transit net assets was due to the timing of
the grants and when they were actually received. All other funds had little or no change. The
following chart reflects the condensed statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund
balances (in millions),
Major
Enterprise Funds
Mass Nonmajor  Total Internal
Water Transit Hotel Enterprise Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds Funds

Operating Revenues § 124 § 05 $ 0.1 $ 3.1 $161 § 159
Operating Expenses 13.7 5.7 0.0 2.8 22.2 15.4
Operating Income (Loss) (1.3) (5.2) 0.1 0.3 (6.1) 0.5
Nonoperating Revenues

(Expenses) 0.2 4.6 0.6 0.0 5.4 0.1
Income (Loss) Before

Transfers (1.1) (0.6) 0.7 0.3 (0.7) 0.6
Net Transfers (6.0) (0.1) (0.5) (0.5) (7.1) (0.2)
Change In Net Assets (7.1) (0.7) 0.2 0.2) (7.8) 0.4
Net Assets, Beginning

of Year 66.8 6.1 (0.1} 11.3 84.1 94 -

Net Assets, End of

Year §. 597 $_041 §11.1 $76.3 - 5 9.8

.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
April 30, 2009

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The final budget projected that the fund balance would go down by $7.1 million. Because the
actual expenses were significantly less than the budget, the fund balance went down $3.9
million. The decrease in fund balance of $3.9 million, even though less than expected, was due
to the settlement of two major labor contracts that were two years overdue, and overall deficit
spending.

The following chart reflects the condensed budgetary comparison schedule (in millions):

General Fund: Final Budget Actual
Revenues:

Taxes § 148 § 152

Intergovernmental 30.9 29.9

Other 2.3 2.6
Total Revenues 48.0 47.7
Expenditures:

Expenditures 58.0 54.9
Other Financing Sources (Uses): 2.9 3.3
Change in Fund Balance $ (.1 §  (3.9)

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
April 30, 2009, amounts to $137.3 million (net of accumulated depreciation). Capital assets used
in governmental activities remained the same as last year. Capital assets used in business-type
activities decreased by $9.5 million. Refer to Note 6 for more detailed information on capital
assets activity.



CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
April 30,2009

The following charts reflect the condensed change in capital assets (in millions):
Governmental Activities
Net

Balance Additions/ Balance
April 30, 2008 Deletions April 30, 2009

Non-Depreciable Assets:
Land/Construction in

Progress $ 8.7 § @0 $ 6.7
Other Capital Assets:
Infrastructure 84.1 49 89.0
Buildings and Improvements 25.6 0.6 26.2
Vehicles 13.0 0.9 13.9
Office Equipment 2.2 0.1 23
Other Equipment 9.0 0.0 0.0
Accum. Depreciation on
Capital Assets (67.3) (4.5 (71.8)
Totals § 753 5 00 __ _S§ 753

Business-Type Activities

Restated Net
Balance Additions/ Balance
April 30, 2008 Deletions April 30, 2009

Non-Depreciable Assets:

Land/Construction in
progress $ 7.2 $ 0.0 $ 7.2
Other Capital Assets:
Infrastructure 20.0 1.2 21.2
Buildings and Improvements 105.9 (6.5) 99.4
Vehicles 72 0.0 7.2
Office Equipment 0.0 0.0 0.0
Other Equipment 4.8 0.0 4.8
Accum. Depreciation on
Capital Assets (73.6) (4.2) (77.8)
Totals § 715 $ _ {(9.5) 3 62.0
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
April 30, 2009

Debt Administration

At April 30, 2009, the City had outstanding debt as follows:

Obligations
Outstanding Due Within
April 30, 2009 One Year
Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds:;
Series of 1991 $ 1,159,195 $ 415,995
Series of 1998 2,340,000 260,000
Series of 2004A 10,050,000 470,000
Series of 2004B 23,820,000 1,125,000
Series of 2005 4,605,000 163,000
Series of 2008 10,000,000 -
Notes Payable:
Series 2005A 397,447 54,459
Series 2008A 1,244,969 -
Wabash Crossing Phase II 4,471,960 4,471,960
- HUD Section 108, 1999-A 630,000 120,000
HUD Section 108, 2002-A 2.485.000 145.000
Total Governmental Activities 61,203.571 $7,227.414
Business-type Activities:
Notes Payable:
2001 IEPA Loan $ 5,295,939 § 332,911
Series 2007 7,225,000 -
Total Business-type Activities $ 12,520,939 § 332911

There was no change in credit ratings or debt limitations. Additional information on long-term
debt activity can be found in Note 8 to the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

The unemployment rate for the City metro area is currently 9.8 percent. That is up 4.1 percent
from the year before. While the rate is not as low as the state rate of 9.4 percent or the national
rate of 9.0 percent, Decatur had shown a great deal of improvement prior to the current economic
decline. Decatur saw their unemployment rate drop from 7.6 percent in 2002 to 5.7 percent in
2008, which is 1.9 percent. The overall unemployment rate has been influenced greatly by a
very large layoff of one of the City’s major employers. It is expected that these employees will
eventually be called back.

What the city is experiencing right now is no different than what most other communities are
experiencing. Prior to the national downturn, the local economy was doing relatively well.
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Recelvames:
Property taxas, nel
llincis municipal sales tax
Other taxes
Pue from ciher govermnmments
Accounis receivable
Notes receivable
Other
Inlemal balances
Prepaid ilems
BDeferred charges
Due from component unit
Inventorles
Assets held for resale
Resiricted Investments
Capital assets nol being depraciated
Capilal assels being deprecialed, net

TOTAL ABSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Interest payable
Claims payable

Oiher accrued lizbllitles
Uneamed revenue

Leng-termm obligaticns, due within ane year:

Bonds payable

Noles payable

Due o primary govemument
Compensated ahsences

Long-term obligations, due in more than one year;

Bonds payable
Notes payahle
Due to primary government
Deferred cumpensatlon plan

Other post-employment benefits
Compensated absences

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested In capital assets, net of refated deby

Unrestricted nel assets {deficlt)

Total net assets

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
April 30, 2009

Primary Govemment

STATEMENT 1

Governmental Business-type Component
Activitles Actlvities Total Unit
§ 24,823,626 s 5,172,688 5 30,085,314 5 93,759
- 18,672,565 19,072,565 -
10,676,828 216,437 10,893,266 -
5,184,413 - 5,184,413 -
3,428,5T - 3,429,571 -
557,336 - 557,330 -
198,615 2,020,876 3,017,583 21,748
1,025,840 417,356 1,443,198 -
47,888 117,600 165,466 -
(755,958) 755,858 - -
10,744 270,200 261,644 11,41
264,605 - 284,605 -
224,624 - 224,624 -
236,656 480,240 716,896 8,208
- 22,940 22,940 -
- - - 338,734
6,705,651 7,244,790 13,951,641 3,130,762
68,633,551 54,776,148 123,409,688 3,721,380
£.121,302.169 I 1 . NZTFOTOR § 1026764
5 265,637 5 790,654 3 1,086,291 3 28,318
380,585 160,847 521,432 -
1,128,029 203,536 1,332,665 75,709
3,431,231 - 3,491,311 -
2,430,002 697,193 3,127,185 28,586
10,815,298 - 10,815,288 33,570
2,435,985 - 2,435,985 -
4,791,419 332,911t 5,124,330 -
- - - 22,457
2,458,584 - 2,458,584 -
47,038,412 - 47,038,412 -
4,437,957 12,188,029 16,625,988 -
- - - 202,167
- - - 38,734
311,081 - 311,091 -
410,596 - 410,596 -
B0,375.917 14,373,270 94,748,187 429,541
17,251,831 56,724,998 73,976,820 6,627,518
23,755,421 20,270,332 44,025,753 (30,295)
£.41.007.252 R 76,995,330 § 119,002,282
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STATEMENT 4
CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
RECONCILIATION CF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
April 30, 2009

Total fund balances — Governmental funds $ 22,204,847

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities
are not financial resources and therefore
are not reported in the funds:

Capital assets $ 147,168,770
Accumulated depreciation (71,818,368)
Net capital assets 75,340,402

Other long-term assets are not available to pay
for current period expenditures and therefore
are deferred in the funds:
Taxes receivable 2,025,865

Internal service funds are used by the City to

charge the costs of certain activities to

individual funds. Certain assets and liabilities

of the internal service funds are included in

governmental activities in the statement of

net assets 4,164,616

Costs related fo the issuance of long-term debt are

recorded as expenditures when incurred in

governmental funds, but are capitalized and

amortized over the life of the debt issue in the

statement of net assets 284,605

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in
governmental funds, but rather is recognized
when due (1,129,029)

Some liabilities reported in the statement of activities
do not require the use of current financial resources
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in
governmental funds. These liabilities consist of:

Compensated absences payable (2,869,180)
Post-employment benefits (311,091)
General obligation bonds payable (49,474,407
Notes payable (9.229.376)
Total long-term liabilities (61,884.054)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 41007252

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended April 30, 2009

Net change in total fund balances
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of Activities are different because:
Some revenues were not collected for several months
after the close of the fiscal year and therefore were not
considered to be "available” and are not reported as
revenue in the governmental funds. The change from
fiscal year 2008 to 2009 consists of:
Taxes received from the State of lllinois

In governmental funds, debt is not reported as a liability.
In the current period, proceeds were received in the amount of

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore
are not reported in the governmental funds.
Increase in long-term compensated absences $
Increase in accrued interest on debt

(253,399)
(159,581)

Total expenses of non-current resources

Governmental funds report purchases of capital assets as
expenditures while governmental activities report
depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures
over the life of the assets,

Capital expenditures

Depreciation

4,567,696
(5,495,047}

Capital expenditures in excess of depreciation

Internal service funds are used by the City to charge the costs
of certain activities to individual funds. A portion of the

net revenue of the internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities on the Statement of Activities

Repayment of principal on long-term debt is an expenditure
in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces
long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement #45

requires accrual of post-employment benefits other than
pensions in the Statement of Activities

31

$ 4,236,271

(6,242)

(11,322,400)

(412,980)

(927,351)

360,949

5,803,265

(311,091)



STATEMENT 6

Bond issuances costs and discounts on issuance were reported
in the governmental funds. However, these amounts have
been deferred and amortized in the Statement of Net Assets

Deferred bond discount 3 (156,236)
Deferred bond issuance cosis {17,787)
Total deferred costs (174,023)
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities 3 (2,753.602)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY CF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Aprit 30, 2009

Buslness-type Activities

STATEMENT 7

Governmental
Major Enterprise Funds Activitles-
Nonmajor Total Inlernal
Water Mass Transit Hotel Enterprise Enterprise Sarvice
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Currant Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents § 1,085,023 3 786,635 & 5,607 $ 3,2B5,333 $ 4,172688 5 8,136,913
Invesiments 11,580,398 76,080 7,416,100 - 18,072,565 -
Receivables:
Properly laxes, ney - 216,437 - - 216,437 -
Accounis recelvable 1,803,573 BB5,207 . 352,188 2,820,878 3.1685
Other 31413 - 86,112 75 117,600 1,536
Due fram olher funds - - - 285,248 285,248 -
Inventories 311,758 168,484 - - 480,240 212,262
Assels held for sale - - - 22,940 22,840 -
Prepaid expenses, cumrent 25,800 - - 37,800 3,700 -
Tolal current assels 14,848,081 2,112,632 7.507.909 3,083,504 28,252,308 8,353,676
Noncurrent Assets:
Prepaid expense, nel of cumren! 207,200 - - - 207,200 -
MNaies recejvable - - - 417,356 417,358 -
Prapesy, plant and equipmant
Land 3,318,778 BE9,398 - 2,158,991 8,377,168 -
Bulldings 43,794,700 4,036,423 - 5497,739 53,328,862 .
Improvements other 1han bulldings 56,583,568 116,768 - 10,659,136 87,369,482 -
Machinary and equipment 4,089,265 6,195,566 - 534,748 12,828,579 7,783,618
108,808,311 11,248,176 “ 18,650,614 139,905,101 7,783,618
Less accumulated deprecialion 58,526,267 7.544.828 - 11.613.048 77.884,163 2,704,581
‘Tolal propasty, plant and equipment 51,280,024 3,703.348 - 7,037,566 £2,020,8938 5,050,038
Tolal noncurren! assets 51.4B7.224 3,703,348 - 7.454,922 62,645,494 5,050,038
TOTAL ASSETS 66,135,285 5,816,180 7,507 809 11,436,516 90,857,880 13,412,814
LIABILITIES
Curent llebillties:
Accounis payable 701,042 40,348 . 49,266 790,654 15,407
Contracls payable 15,838 - - 144,800 160,847 -
Clalms payable - - - - - 3,481,311
Interesl payable 64,103 - 138,533 - 203,636 -
Dther accrued liahllities 365,928 288.518 - 32,746 897,193 108,536
Uneamed revenue - - - - - 8,585
Nole payahla 332811 - - - 332,911 -
Due tg eiher funds - - - 95,731 95,731 -
‘Tatal current llabiliies 1,478,923 334,864 139,533 322,652 2,280,872 3.622.818
Long-term liabllities:
Nole payable 4,863,029 - 7,225,000 - 12,188,028 -
Tatal lizbllities 6,442,852 338,864 7,364,533 322,662 14 469,001 3,622,818
NET ASSETS
Invested In caplial assels, net af
relaled dabt 45,984,084 3,703,348 - 7,037,565 56,724,058 5,059,038
Unrestricled 13,708,249 1,773,868 143,376 4,078,268 18,703,881 4,731,057
Tatal nat assels 3 59,692,333 B 5,477,316 5 143,376 5 11,115,864 76,428,889 $ 8,780,085
Some amaunis reparted for business-lype activities in
{he statements of nel assels are different because
cerlain inlemal Service Fund net assets are
included with business-type activilies 566,441

Net assets of buslness-type activilies

The accompanying noles are an intagral part of the financial statsments.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

Year Ended April 30, 2009

Businass-typs Actlvities

STATEMENT B

Governmuntal
MaJor Enterprise Funds Activitios-
Nonmajor Total Internal
Water Mass Transit Hotel Enterpriso Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds Funds
OCPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 5 12240777 S 468,610 5 - $ 3,090,894 8 15,720,281 5 13,580,085
Payroll deduclionsfretires contributions - - - - - 1.B60,954
Other ravenue 128.178 4.517 138,305 140,357 411,358 492 519
Tatal operaling revanues 12,366,556 473,127 138,306 3,151.251 16,131,640 15,844,461
QPERATING EXPENSES
Persannal services 3,702,908 3,437,066 - 296,421 7,436,356 1,526,743
Conltractua! services 3,048,910 488,585 - 586,038 4,503,533 1,048,217
Commodilles 2,813,255 960,353 - 22,548 3,796,156 1,050,594
Other chargss 605,878 164,800 20 4.123,975 1,804,473 10,825,457
Depreciation and amartization 3,511,484 614,585 43,000 386,211 4,555,290 984,049
Tolal operaling expensas 13,662,236 5,645,399 43,020 2,815,183 23,185,648 15,435.060
Operating income ({loss) (1,313,280} (5,172,272) 95,206 336.058 (6,054,208) 509,401
NONOPERATING REVENUES {EXPENSES)
Property taxes - 216,672 - - 216,872 -
Investman! income and net increase In
{air value of investments 458,045 8,945 422,249 30,797 621,036 83,182
Inlergovammental revenue - 4,372,081 - - 4,372,081 .
Interest axpensa (156,997) - - - {156.897) -
Gain(loss) on dispesal of city property (563,045} 3,758 469,985 (17,844} 402,734 -
Tolal nonoperating revenues 245,003 4,601,658 592,214 12,853 5455726 93,182
Incoma {less) befora transfars (1.064,277) (570.616) 587,500 348,911 {598.482) 602,583
TRANSFERS
Translers in 22,400 40,148 - 207,100 269,644 3,729,387
Transfers oul {6,078,506} (138,778} (417,983) {707,748} {7,343,025} {3,942 951)
Net {ransfars {6,058,108) {98 .625) (417,983) {500,648} 17,073,376} (213,604}
Change in nel assets {7,120,383) (669,245) 268,507 {151,737} {7,671,858} 38R,979
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING DF YEAR 656,812,716 6,145,561 {125,131} 11,267,601 9.41.116
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 5 58682333 3 5477 316 3 143,376 311,115,864 5 97490085
Reconcilialicn to Slalemant of Activilies:
Certain ameunis for the Inlemal service funds ere allocaled Lo
business-type activities in the Statament of Activities 28,030

Nat Business-type Activities

The accompenying noles are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cush received from chorges for sanices
Cush paid (o suppliars far goods and sanjees
Cash paid (e employsea

Het cash provided by {usedin}
oparating aclivitiea

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
interpavernmental revenue
Transfera in
Transfers cut
Property taxes

Het cash provided by {ussd in)
roncapital finanding nelivilies

CASH FLOWS FROM CAP|TAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisticn of properly, plant and equipment
Froceeds on suie of cty propedy
Principal payments - note
Injerest payments

Nel mash pravided by (wsed in) capital apd
relaled finoncing acthilies

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Invesimenl lcome
Proceeds from sales and malurittes of investmenls
Purchase of lnvestments

Het cash provided by {used in} invesling adivities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE} [N CASH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGRINING DF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQLIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY |USED IN) DPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operaling hcome (loss)
Adustments to reconcle operating Inctma (lois) bo net cash
provided by {ysed in) operaling octhitiza:
Pepreciation
Guain on disposal of assels
Effects of chanpes n operling nssets and liabiitizs:
Recafvablay
Invenlodss
Prepaid lems
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Oiher liabillles
Uneamed revenue

NEF CASH PROVIDED BY {USER IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Endad April 30, 2008

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

ETATEMENT 9

Moss Nonmajar Total ntemed
Wator Transit Hotel Enterprise Enterprise Sarvice
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds Funds
5 12.622.628 H 473,127 283,308 H 3,250,801 H 18,858,082 b 15,936,687
{8,452,388) {1,602,358) (20} (2,972,878} (30,127.425) (12.548,318)
{3.024.601) {3.402.508) - i320,688) (7,847.803) (1,501,471
2,045,850 (3,531,738 263,288 008,428 {618,167) 1,814,534
. 4,398,298 . - 4,388,208 -
22400 40,148 - 207,100 268,848 3,720,367
(8,078,505) (138,778) (417,893) {707,748 (¥,343,025) (3,342,001
- 248,872 - - 216,872 -
(8.046,108) 4,517,641 (417.203) {500, 646) [2,457.1D4&) (213,634)
(1,336,474) (117,785} - {75,808) (1,530.157) (2,002,487)
1.855 5,308 9,864,250 - 8,871,513 18,075
{3Z3,445) B - - {323,445) -
{160,812} - (31,007} - (181.818) -
{1.816,877} {1247 4,833,243 {75,808) 4,825 891 (1.984.42)
488,108 8,945 36137 0,787 564,887 83,182
18,183,282 . . - 18,183,282 -
(14,282,528} {B1.940) (7,418,100} . 21,780,885) -
5,379,765 {72.985) 17.376.853) 30,797 (2,042,206) 3142
{48,353) {109,586) (701,427) 80,677 (SB8,678) (280,210)
1,144,382 085,204 J07.124 2,924,858 5,752,366 §,427.123
§ 1,095,023 1 765,835 5,857 5 326533 5 5.172.688 5 6,136,913
5 (1,313,280 $ (5,172,.272) 95,288 5 338,058 5 {6,B54,208) H 509,401
3,511,484 814,585 43,600 386,211 4,655,200 234,048
- - - - - {7.710)
453,872 - 125,500 148,550 747,422 E
44,844 {18,485} - - 35,459 {21.817)
25,800 - - 4,260 36,100 -
(71,507} 10,864 - (27,416) {87,859) 404,575
15,828 - - 51,835 47,773 -
{221,882 34,660 - (23,617) {210,1444) {54,94)
- . : - - (8)
3 2,445,850 § (4.541,738) 263,288 H 208.428 3 {818,157 3 1.814.834

Thet accompanying noles wre ap integral part of Ihe fnandal slalementis.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
April 30, 2009

ASSETS

Cash and short-term investments

Taxes recelvable

Accrued interest

Long-term investments, at fair value
U.S. Government obligations
Mutual funds
Common stock
Corporate bonds

Total long-term investments

TOTAL ASSETS

NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits

STATEMENT 10

Pension
Trust
Funds

$ 9,735,279
202,339
508,484

55,416,013
28,666,300
8,763,572
2,833,419

96,679,304

$ 107,125,406

8 107.125.406

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year Ended April 30, 2009

ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer
Plan member

Total contributions

Investment earnings (loss):
Interest and dividends

Net decrease in the fair value of investments
Total investment loss
Less investment expense

Net investment loss
Total deductions

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits and refunds
Administrative expense
Educational expenses

Total deductions

Change in net assets

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

STATEMENT 11

Pension
Trust
Funds

$ 5,933,752
1,829,343

7,763,095

3,129,352
{11,438,992)

(8,309,640)

239,401

(8,549,041)

(785,946)

8,154,754
88,606

8,243,360

(10,029,306)

117,154,712

$ 107,125,406

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOCIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 1~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Decatur have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles {GAAP) applicable to governments as promulgated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The more significant of these accounting
policies are as follows:

A.

THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Decatur is a municipal corperation with a council/manager form of
government. Revenues are substantially generated as a result of taxes assessed and
allocated to the City (examples would be property, sales, income, and motor fuel taxes),
charges for services performed and governmental grants. Revenues are therefore
dependent on the economy within the territorial houndaries of the City and nearby
surrounding area and the appropriations of entitements at the State and Federal
Government leve!, Taxable industry within the area is primarily manufacturing and retail.
The surrounding area has a substantial agricultural base.

The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the notion of financial
accountability. A primary government is financially accountable for the organizations that
make up its legal entity. It is also financially accountable for legally separate
organizations if its officials appoint a voting majority of an organization's governing body
and either it is able fo impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the
organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial
burdens on, the primary government. A primary government may also be financially
accountable for governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent on it.

The City's reporting entity includes the City's governing board and all related
organizations for which the City is financially accountable.

Blended Component Unit;

DCDF, Inc. is a not-for-profit corporation which finances and subsidizes housing
rehabilitation activities within the City. DCDF, Inc. members are comprised entirely of the
City Council and the Mayor. The members, who are the governing bedy of DCDF, Inc.,
appoint a six member advisory board. The members retain ulitimate control over DCDF,
Inc. Therefore, DCDF, Inc. is reported as if it were part of the primary government.
DCDF, Inc. is the vehicle through which a portion of the City’s redevelopment efforts are
conducted. All of DCDF, Inc.’s activities are directed entirely by the City. In addition, the
City's employees are responsible for the day-to-day administrative and financial
management of DCDF, Inc., and grant funds used by DCDF, Inc. are in the City's name.
DCDF, Inc. is included as an enterprise fund in the City's financial statements. Separate
financial statements are not issued for this component unit.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 1 —~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
A. THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY (CONTINUED)
Discretely Presented Component Unit:

The Decatur Metropolitan Exposition, Auditorium and Office Building Authority (Civic
Center Authority) was made possible by Act 265 of the lllinois Compiled Statutes
(70ILCS265/1 et seq). Its primary purpose is to provide office space and administrative
services for various meeting and entertainment functions. The Mayor of the City appoints
the board of directors, The Civic Center Authority imposes a financial burden upon the
City due to an intergovernmental cooperation agreement in which the City agreed to pay
all cash operating deficits of the Civic Center Authority. The Civic Center Authority does
not have a legally adopted budget. The Civic Cenier Authority is presented as a
proprietary fund type.

Complete financial statements for the Civic Center Authority may be obtained at: #1 Gary
K. Anderson Plaza, Decatur, |llinois 62523. _

Related Organizations;

The City's officials are also responsible for appointing the members of the boards of other
organizations, but the City’s accountability for these organizations does not exiend
beyond making the appointments.

Joint Venture:

The City is a participant with Macon County, lllinois (the County) in a non-equity joint
venture to provide financial support for the Decatur Macon County Law Enforcement
Center. The Decatur Public Building Commission {DPBC), a separate legal entity, owns
and operates the Law Enforcement Center. The DPBC is governed by a five member
board composed of three appointees from the City and two from the County. See Note
12 for information about the City's transactions with the DPBC during the year. Complete
financial statements for the DPBC can be obtained from the DPBC's administrative office
at 333 South Franklin, Decatur, lllinois 62523.

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The City's basic financial statements consist of City-wide statements, including a
statement of net assets and a statement of activities, and fund-financial statements,
which provide a more detailed level of financial information. The City-wide focus is more
on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in aggregate financial position
resulting from activities of the fiscal period.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINQIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONTINUED})

City-wide Financial Statements — The statement of net assets and the statement of
activities display information about the City as a whole. In the City-wide statement of net
assets, both the governmental and business-type activities columns are presented on a
consolidated basis by column. These statements include the financial activities of the
primary government, except for fiduciary activities, For the most part, the effect of
interfund activity has been removed from these statements. However, interfund services
provided and used are not eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support. The City-wide statement of activities reflects both
the direct expenses and net cost of each function of the City's governmental activities and
business-type activities. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function. Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient for the goods
or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular program and interest earned on
grants that is required to be used te support a particular program. Revenues which are
not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the City, with
certain limited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues
identifies the extent to which each government function or business segment is self-
financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.

Fund Financial Statements — The financial transactions of the City are recorded in
individual funds. A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing
set of accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures or expenses, as appropriaie. Separate statements for each fund category —
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial
statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and presented
as nonmajor funds. Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services,
result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund.
Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially
equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result
from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

City-wide Financial Statements — The City-wide financial statements and fund financial
statements for proprietary and fiduciary funds are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The economic resources
measurement focus means all assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) are
included on the balance sheet and the operating statemenis present increases
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned, if measurable, and expenses are
recognized as incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities that Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting”, the City applies all GASB pronouncements and all Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board
Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989,
unless they conflict with GASB pronouncements.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the City considers all highly liguid
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

The City has reported three categories of pregram revenues in the statement of activities
(1) fees, fines and charges for services, (2) program-specific operating grants and
contributions, and (3) program-specific capital grants and contributions. Program
revenues are derived directly from the program itself or from external sources; they
reduce the net cost of each function to be financed from the City's general revenues. For
identifying the function to which a program revenue pertains, the determining factor for
charges for services is which function generates the revenue. For grants and
contributions, the determining factor is the function to which the revenues are restricted.

Eliminations have been made in the statement of net assets to remove the "grossing-up”
effect on assets and liabilities within the governmental and business-type activities
columns for amounts reported in the individual funds as interfund receivables and
payables. Similarly, transfers between funds have been eliminated in the statement of
activities. Amounts reported in the governmental or proprietary funds as receivable from
or payable to fiduciary funds have been reclassified in the statement of net assets as
accounts receivable or payable to external parties.

Fund Financial Statements — Governmental fund financial statements are reported
using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis
of accounting. Revenues are recognized as socn as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this
purpose the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty (60)
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Revenues accrued at the end of the year
include charges for services, licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures,
intergovernmental revenues, investment earings, property taxes, sales taxes and
income taxes. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available
only when cash is received by the government. Nonexchange transactions, in which the
City receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include taxes, grants, and
donations. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under
accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related
to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment
is due.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}
C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Deferred revenue is reported on the governmental fund balance sheet. Deferred
revenues arise when potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and available
criteria. Deferred revenues also arise when resources are received prior to the
government having a legal claim to them. In a subsequent period, when both recognition
criteria are met, or when the government has a legal claim to the resources, the liability is
removed and the revenue is recognized.

Proprietary funds separate all activity into two categories: operating and non-operating
revenues and expenses. Operating revenues and expenses result from providing
services and producing and delivering goods. Non-operating revenues and expenses
entail all other activity not included in operating revenues and expenses. Non-operating
revenues and expenses include capital and noncapital financing activities and investing
activities.

When an expenditure/expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted resources are available, it is the City's policy to apply restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as needed.

Differences occur from the manner in which the governmental activities and the City-wide
financial statements are prepared due to the inclusion of capital asset and long-term debt
activity. Governmental fund financial statements, therefore, include a reconciliation with
brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the City-wide statements and
the statements for governmental funds.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used
to account for all of the general revenues of the City which are not specifically levied
or collected for other City funds, and for expenditures related to public works, public
safety, and other general governmental activities of the City.

Decatur Public Library Fund — This fund accounts for revenues designated to finance
the City's Public Library and expenditures of such fund.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for those City activities that are similar to those
often found in the private sector. The measurement focus is upon determination of net
income, financial position, and changes in financial position.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds;
Water Fund — This fund accounts for the construction, operation, and maintenance
of the City-owned water freatment and disiribution system. Revenues are
generated through charges to users based upon water consumption.

Mass Transit Fund — This fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the
City-owned public transit system.

Hotel Fund — This fund accounts for management fee income and debt service of a
hotel purchased in 2008 and subsequently sold in 2008.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as
an agent for individuals, other governments, or other funds. These include Pension Trust
Funds. The Pension Trusts include the Fire Pension Fund and Police Pension Fund
which account for activities as prescribed by the Statutes of the State of lllinois.

In addition to the major funds mentioned above, the City uses the following fund types:
Governmental Fund Types:
Special Revenue Funds — Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the

proceeds of specific revenue sources requiring separate accounting because of
legal or regulatory provisions or administrative action.

Debt Service Funds —~ Debt Service Funds are used to account for the City’s
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt,
principal, interest and related costs.

Capital Projects Funds ~ The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the
City’s purchase or construction of major capital facilities, which are not financed by
other funds.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
Proprietary Fund Types:
Enterprise Funds — The Enterprise Funds operations are financed similar to a

private business enterprise; the intent is that the cost of the service is financed by
user charges, and the activities be measured on a net income basis.

Internal Service Funds — The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the
financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency or other
departments or agencies of the government, on a cost-reimbursement basis. Such
goods and services include maintenance of City vehicles, management information
services, and administration of the City's self insurance policies.

D. POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains pooled cash accounts for different fund groups which are used to
account for all cash and investment transactions of that group. Monthly interest income
of each pool is distributed to the individual funds based on their average cash balance in
the pool during that period.

Investments are stated at fair value. Fair value for the investment in lllinois Funds is the
same as the value of the pool shares. State statute requires the State Treasurer's lllinois
Funds to comply with the lllinois Public Funds Investment Act.

E. INVENTORIES

The only material inventories are those of supplies and parts in the Water Fund, Mass
Transit Fund, and Fleet Maintenance Fund which are valued at the lower of cost or
market, with cost determined on a first-in first-out basis. A perpetual inventory system is
used which is adjusted annually based on a physical count. Cost is recorded at the time
of purchase and is charged to the appropriate activity when consumed.

F. FUND EQUITY/NET ASSETS

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance
for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside
parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative
management plans that are subject to change.

Net assets represent the differences between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested
in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the
acquisition construction of improvements of those assets. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the City or through exiernal restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, laws, or regulations of other governments.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
G. LONG-TERM DEBT

In the City-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial statements,
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as
issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-
line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or
discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the
term of the related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs are reported as debt service
expenditures.

H. CASH EQUIVALENTS

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

I.  CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include property, plant equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, alleys and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-
type activities columns in the City-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined
by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $20,000 and a useful life
of more than one year. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements to land and buildings are
capitalized. Interest expense incurred during construction of capital improvements has
not been capitalized.

All reported capital assets except land and construction in progress are depreciated.
Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital
assets,

Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives:
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009
NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

I. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Estimated
Useful

Category of Assets Life
Building and other improvements 20 - 50 years
Infrastructure — roads 50 years
Office furniture 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Water treatment equipment 10 years
Automobiles 2 -7 years
Trucks 8 years
Buses 10 years
Other vehicles 10 years
Other machinery and equipment 5 years

J. PROPERTY TAXES

The City’s property tax is levied each year by the second Tuesday of December on all
taxable real property located in the City. A lien on all taxable real property is effective on
January 1 of the tax year.

The City is a home rule community under the 1970 lllinois Constitution and, accordingly,
does not have a statutory tax rate limit.

Property in Macon County, the county in which the City resides, is assessed by the
Macon County Assessor. The values are adjusted by various percentages depending
upon the type of property (residential, commercial, efc.). The assessed values are
equalized by the lllinois Department of Revenue to ensure uniformity of property
assessments throughout the state. The Macon County Clerk computes the annual tax
rate by dividing the levy into the equalized value of each taxing unit. The Clerk then
computes the tax for each parce! by multiplying the aggregate rates of all the taxing units
having jurisdiction over the parcel by the equalized value. The tax amounts by parcel are
forwarded to the Macon County Collector.

Property taxes are collected by the Macon County Coliector who remits to the taxing units
their respective shares of the collection. Taxes levied in one year become due and
payable in two installments during the following year. The first instaliment is due no later
than June 1% and the second installment is due no later than September 1%
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
J. PROPERTY TAXES (CONTINUED)

Based on collection histories, the City has provided at April 30, 2009 an allowance for
uncollectible real property taxes equivalent to 1 percent of the current year's levy.

Real property tax revenues are recognized when earned in proprietary funds and pension
funds. Since property taxes are measurable but not available to finance current period
obligations, the receivable is recorded and deferred in the governmental funds.

K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

City employees receive vacation and sick pay in varying amounts based upon their
employment anniversary dates. The City reimburses employees for accumulated
vacation days upon their termination or retirement. Employees must take vacation
accrued during the year of the accrual. Management and general service employees,
fire, and police, may accumulate up to 240, 240, and 150 days of sick leave, respectively,
to be paid upon death or retirement. The City pays no accumulated sick leave upon
termination.

The liability for compensated absences {unused vacation time) of the City relating to
employees of the governmental activities is recorded in the City-wide financial
statements. The long-term portion of compensated absences will be paid from the fund
from which the employee is paid. For governmental funds this includes the General
Fund, HOME Fund, Community Development Block Grant Fund, Library Fund and the
Municipal Band Fund.

The accumulated vacation time liability of employees charged to the Proprietary Fund
Types is reported as an expense and as a liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to
the employees.

L. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS/TRANSFERS

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds”
for the current portion of interfund loans or “advances to/ffrom other funds® for the non-
current portion of interfund loans. All other outstanding balances between funds are
reported as “due to/from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the City-wide financial
statements as “internal balances”. All receivables are shown net of an allowance for
uncollectibles.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
M. CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS

When a probable claim liability has been incurred at year end and the amount of the loss
can be reasonably estimated, the City records the estimated loss under its self-insurance
program. The claim liability includes claims incurred but not reported (IBNR}, based on
historical data pursuant to the self-funded workmen's compensation, comprehensive
general liabilty, employee dishonesty, property damage, medical, dental, and
unemployment compensation programs.

N. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the
City’s management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
basic financial statements and/or the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. APPROPRIATED BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1. An appropriated budget is legally adopted through the budgetary process on an
annual fiscal year basis for the General Fund, special revenue funds, debt service
funds, the capital projects funds, enterprise funds, and internal service funds.

2. The process is initiated in December of each year, with the departmental requests
presented in February to the Budget Review Committee composed of the City
Manager, Deputy City Manager, and Director of Financial Management.

3. The City Manager's proposed and bhalanced executive budget is presented to the
City Council during March with a public hearing and final adoption taking place prior
to April 30" of each year.

4. The appropriated budget is legally enacted through the passage of an Appropriation
Ordinance before the end of July of each year. The Appropriation Ordinance
includes changes from the approved budget and is adopted after an additional
public hearing.

5. Both the appropriated budget and Appropriation Ordinance are prepared on a cash
basis which is not in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP). The Budget to Actual schedules include the amounts of timing differences
necessary to reconcile the non-GAAP actual to GAAP actual fund balances for the
General and major Special Revenue Fund.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 2 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

8. The level of budgetary control is by department and therefore, expenditures within a
fund cannot legally exceed appropriations on a departmental basis. The City’s
departments are comprised of the following. Legislative, Executive, Management
Services, lLegal, Financial Management, Police, Fire, Economic and Urban
Development, Neighborhood Services, Public Works, and Other Non-Departmental
Charges.

7. Anytime after six months of the fiscal year have elapsed, the appropriated budgets
can be amended by the City Manager to reflect transfers within departments.
Budgeted amounts reflected in the accompanying appropriated budget and actual
comparisons are as amended by the year-end budget revisions.

8. Supplemental appropriation ordinances may be passed by the Council should a
new unanticipated source of revenue develop for a specific purpose.

9. All unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end requiring reappropriation the
following vear.

B. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

There were no funds that had actual expenditures/expenses in excess of the
appropriated amount for the year ended April 30, 2009.

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The City has adopted formal investment policies and procedures as recommended by a citizens'’
investment advisory committee and approved by the City Manager, all within the guidelines
established for the investment of public funds in accordance with the lilincis Compiled Statutes.
The City is authorized by statute and policy to make deposits or investments in obligations of the
United States Government; obligations of states or their political subdivisions; savings accounts,
time deposits, certificates of deposit, or other investments which are direct cbligations of banks as
defined by the lllinois Banking Act; credit union shares; repurchase agreements; commercial paper
rated within the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating services; the lllinois
Public Treasurer's Investment Pool, and funds managed, operated, and administered by a bank,
subsidiary of a bank, or subsidiary of a bank holding company. Pension funds may also invest in
certain non-U.S. obligations, lllincis municipal corporations tax anticipation warrants, veteran’s
loans, obligations of the State of lllinois and its political subdivision, stocks, mutual funds, and
llinois insurance companies’ general and separate accounts. The City's investment policy also
has established maximum limits for investments in uncollateralized ceriificates of deposit, money
market accounts, and banker's acceptances for specific financial institutions as approved by the
City Council, and has limited the City's investment in commercial paper to only the top rated. The
City's deposits, including certificates of deposit, were fully insured or collateralized as required by
state statutes at April 30, 2009. At year end the carrying vaiue of the City's deposits, including
certificates of deposit, was $3,596,727 and the respective bank balances totaled $4,488,208, not
including cash on hand of $7,005. Included in the bank balances are certificates of deposit totaling
$500,000.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Interest Rate Risk — the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The City's formal investment policy states the portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid fo
meet all operating costs which may be reasonably anticipated. In addition, the City shall maintain a
diversity of investments o avoid unreasonable risks. The portfolio should obtain a comparable rate
of return during a market/economic environment of stable interest rates.

Credit Risk — the risk that an issuer or other counter party to an investment will not fulfill its
obligation. The standard of prudence to be used by the City shall be the "prudent person” standard
which states:

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing,
which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their
own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their
capital as well as the possible income to be derived.

The above standard is established as the standard for professional responsibility and shall be
applied in the context of managing the City's overall portfolio.

Custodial Credit Risk — the risk that a government will not be able to cover deposits if the
depository financial institution fails or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The City's deposit policy allows that funds on deposit in excess of
FDIC limits must be secured by some form of collateral, witnessed by a written agreement and held
at an independent, third-party institution in the name of the City. As of April 30, 2009, the City’'s
bank deposits were fully collateralized.

As of April 30, 2008, the City had the following investments:

Investment Maturities {in yvears)

Investment Less More
Type Fair Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10

Cash and

money market $ 25,608,691 $ 25600691 % - 5 - $ -
Certificates of

deposit 8,989,281 6,450,000 2,299418 239,863 -
FFCB 1,857,785 - 1,857,795 - -
FHLB 4,870,291 - 4,000,812 869,479 -
FHLMC 14,349,310 - 4219815 5,140,655 4,988,840
FNMA 29,875,604 - 5,821,490 7.597 851 16,456,263
GNMA 2,185,487 - - 73,687 2,111,800
Municipal

bonds 8,192,204 102,166 3,242,767 2,347.713 2,499,558
U.8. Treasury

bonds 909,667 - - - 909,667
U.8. Treasury

notes 4,763,480 - 506,024 1,341,146 2,816,310
Annuities 101,868 101,868 - - -
Mutual funds 28,520,768 28,520,768 - - -
Common stock 8734 241 9,734,241 - - -
Total $ 140,060,687 8 70518734 $22048121  §17.610,304 $20.862.438
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The City invests in various investment securities. Due to the level of risk associated with certain
investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment
securities will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect account
balances and the amounts reported in the Statement of Net Assets.

Investments in The Iliinois Funds

The State Treasurer maintains the lllinois Treasurer's Investment Pool (Pool) at cost and fair value
through daily adjustment in ihe interest earnings. The State Treasurer also maintains the average
duration of the pool at less than 25 days. The Pool is audited annually by an outside independent
auditor and copies of the report are distributed to participants. The Pool maintains a Standard and
Poor's AAA rating. The City's investments in the Illinois funds are not required to be categorized
because these are not securities. The relationship between the City and the investment agent is a
direct contractual relationship and the investments are not supported by a transferable instrument
that evidences ownership or creditorship. At April 30, 2009, the City had $11,820,043 in the Pocl,
which approximates fair value.

All funds deposited in the Pool are classified as investments even though some could be withdrawn
on a day’s notice. Although not subject to direct regulatory oversight, the fund is administered in
accordance with the provisions of the lllincis Public Funds Investment Act, 30 ILCS 235.

At April 30, 2009, cash and cash equivalents for the Civic Center Authority are comprised of bank
deposits totaling $23,981, cash on hand of $1,964, and deposits with the lllinois Funds of $67,814.
Bank deposits were fully covered by federal depository insurance. The Civic Center Authority’s
restricted investments are comprised of the following:

Carrying Amount

Mutual funds % 38,734
Reconciliation of notes to financial statements:

Primary Government

Carrying amount of bank deposits — per note above $ 3,596,727
Cash on hand — per note above 7,005
Investments — per note abaove {including lllinois Fund) 151,979,730
Total $ 155,583,462
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009
NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Investments in The lfinois Funds (Continued)

Statement 1

Cash and equivalents $ 30,006,314

Long-term investments 19,072,565
Statement 10

Cash and short-term investments 9,735,279

Long-term investments 96,679,304
Total $ 155,583,462

NOTE 4 — INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Interfund receivables and payables as of April 30, 2009 are summarized below:

Due from Due to
Other Funds Other Funds
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 3 95,731 5 285,248
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 285.248 95.731
Total interfunds $ 3809789 3 380,979

Interfund receivables and payables are primarily used to record:
* Interfund loans related to collection of revolving loan payments due to another fund.
» Interfund loans relating to negative cash balances.
» Interfund loans relating to loans between funds for various programs.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 5 -~ TRANSFERS

The following transfers were made during the fiscal year between funds within the primary
government:

Transfers In Transfers Qut

Major Governmental Funds:

General $ 4,735,223 $ 1,402,450

Library - 1,200
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 5,823,938 1,868,531
Major Enterprise Funds:

Water 22,400 6,078,506

Mass Transit 40,149 138,778

Hotel - 417,993
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 207,100 707,748
Internal Service Funds 3,729,387 3,942 991
Total interfunds $14.558,197 $_ 14558197

The transfers represent both routine and non-routine items. Generally, routine transfers are used
to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund that
statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the
funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and
(3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted
for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

April 30, 2009

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended April 30, 2009 was as follows:

Primary government

Balance Balance
May 1, 2008 Additions Deletions April 30, 2009
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land 3 5,397,678 3 - $ 51,256 $ 5,346,422
Construction in
progress 3,301,505 1.004.216 2,945,292 1,360,429
Subtotal 8,699,183 1.004.216 2,996,548 6.706.851
Capital assets being
depreciated:
Infrastructure 84,134,371 4,872,332 - 89,006,703
Buildings and
improvements 25,583,389 623,425 10,704 26,196,110
Vehicles 13,011,489 1,872,642 963,459 13,920,672
Office equipment 2,161,615 207,243 10,923 2,357,935
Other equipment 9,009,344 55,725 94 570 8,970,499
Subtotal 133,900,208 7.631,367 1.079.656 140,451,919
Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Infrastructure (39,461,315) (2,913,013} - (42,374,328)
Buildings and
improvements (10,463,904) (855,455) (10,704) (11,308,655}
Vehicles (8,134,337) (1,215,229) (900,263) (8,449,303)
Office equipment (1,114,857} (232,849) (10,923) (1,336,783)
Other equipment (8,165,368) (278,501) (94,570) (8,349,299)
Total
accumulated
depreciation (67.339.781) (5,495,047) (1.016,480) {71,818,368)
Total capital
assets being
depreciated,
net 66,560,427 2,136,320 63.196 68.633.551
Total governmental
activities capital
assets, net $ 75259810 3 3.140.5386 $ 3059744 $ 75,340,402
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009
NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Primary government (Continued)

Balance Balance
May 1, 2008 Additions Deletions April 30, 2009
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets not being
depreciated.:
Land $ 6,377,168 $ - $ - $ 6,377,168
Construction in
progress 789,603 476,530 398,511 867,622
Subtotal 7.166.771 476,530 398,511 7,244 790
Capital assets being
depreciated:
Infrastructure 20,026,212 1,242,184 - 21,268,396
Buildings and
improvements 105,880,470 - . 6,536,411 99,354,059
Vehicles 7,196,268 131,814 90,688 7,237,394
Office equipment 38,312 - - 38,312
Other equipment 4,814,875 23.141 75.866 4,762,150
Subtotal 137,966,137 1,397,139 8,702,865 132.660.311
Less accumulated
depreciation for.
Infrastructure (11,407,046} (284,962) - (11,692,008)
Buildings and
improvements (54,766,757) (3,564,166) (142,125) (58,188,798)
Vehicles (5,755,008) (472,562) (89,138) (6,138,432)
Office equipment (33,000) (1,843) - (34,843)
Other equipment {1,674,191) (231,757) (75,8686) (1,830,082)
Total
accumulated
depreciation (73,636,002) (4,555,290) (307,129) (77,884,163)
Total capital
assets being
depreciated,
net 64,330,135 {3,158.151) 6,395,836 54 776,148
Total business-type
activities capital
assets, net $ 71,496,906 $ (2,.681.621) § 6794347 $ 62,020,938
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense of $5,495,047 and $4,555,290 was charged to the governmental and
business-type activities functional expense categories, respectively, as follows:

Business-Type

Governmental Activities Depreciation Activities Depreciation
General government $ 1,017,001 Water $ 3,511,484
Public safety 551,574 Parking 127,123
Public works 3,431,812 Mass Transit 614,595
Culture and recreation 494 660 Sewer 259,088

Hotel 43,000
Total 950 Total $ 4555290

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Activity for the Civic Center Authority for the year ended April 30, 2009, was as follows:

Balance Balance
May 1, 2008 Additions Deletions April 30, 2009
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 3130762 3 - 3 - $ 3,130,762
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and equipment 12,955,103 61,923 131,906 12,885,120
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and equipment (8,990,107) (294.427) {120,794) {9,163,740)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 3,964,996 {232,504) 11,112 3,721,380
Civic Center capital assets, net § 7.095,758 $ (232504) $ 11112 § 6852142
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NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS

April 30, 2009

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following is a summary of other taxes, due from other governments, accounts, notes, and
other receivables by fund type at April 30, 2009. Any uncollectible amount is not believed to be

material.

Governmental Activities:

Total
Special Debt Capital Internal Statement of
General Revenue Service Projects Services Net Assets
Other taxes:
Hotel and
moteltax $ 62864 $ - 3 - $ - $ - $ 62,864
Food and
beverage tax 277,006 - - - - 277,006
Cable TV tax 81,987 - - - - 81,987
Utility tax 903,640 - - - - 803,640
State income
tax 1,697,807 - - 346,657 - 2,044 464
State replacement
tax - 59,610 - - - 58.610
Total other
taxes $3023304 & 59610 % - $ 346657 §% - $3,429 571
Due from other governments:
Grants $ 71571 § 99034 § - $ - 5 - $ 170,605
Allotments - 386,731 - - - 386,731
Total due from
other govern-
ments $ 71571 B5.76 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 557338
Accounts receivable:
General
billings $ 36754 B 54078 % - $ 3555 & 3,165 § 130,552
Boat licenses 45908 - - - - 45,908
Special
assessments - - 20,155 - - 20,155
Total accounts
receivable $ 82662 $ 54078 3$ 20155 §$ 36555 § 3165 $ 196,615
Notes receivable:
Installment
notes % - $ 29279 § - % - 3 - $ 28279
Deferred notes - 129,840 ~ - - 129,840
Locker rental
rehab loans - 22,628 - - - 22,628
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 7 — RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Activities: (Continued)

Total
Special Debt Capital Internal  Statement of
General Revenue Service Projects Services Net Assets
Notes receivable;
Home program
loans 3 - $ 676275 % - 5 - $ - $ 676,275
Gateway fo
Sertoma Club
loan - 167,818 - - - 167,818
Total notes
receivable 5 - $1.025840 5 - 3 - 3 - $1.025,840
Other:
Investment
income % 3276 3 B52 % 434 3 - ] 1636 & 5,798
Parking tickets 42,068 - - - - 42068
Total other $ 45344 § K52 & 434 & - 3 1636 3 47866
Business-Type Activities:
Enterprise
Accounts receivable:
Water billings $ 1,098,197
Watermain tapping 39,301
Sanitary District billings 466,075
Grants 865,207
Outstanding parking tickets 196,408
Revolving morigage loans 7,321
Recycling fees 102,576
Sewer billings 174,962
DCDF loans 253
Reserve for uncollectible portion {129,322)
Total accounts receivable $ 2820978
Notes receivable:
Installment notes % 389,089
Deferred notes 46,545
Reserve for uncollectible portion (18.278)
Total notes receivable $ 4173586
Other:
Investment income $ 117,600
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS

Aprit 30, 2009

NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes receivable are loans made through the DCDF, Inc. housing rehabilitation program under the
terms of mortgage-secured installment notes with interest rates ranging from zero to six percent.
The term of the notes is not fo exceed twenty years. Notes are classified as either installment or
deferred. Deferred notes have repayment terms beginning sometime in the future.

In accordance with the Statutes of the State of lllinois, the revenue derived from water main tapping
approximates the City’s cost of providing the service.

NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of changes to the City's long-term debt for the fiscal year:

Governmental activities:
General Obligation Bonds:
Series of 1991
Series 0f 1998
Series of 2004A
Series of 2004B
Series of 2005
Series of 2008
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance
discounts
On refunding
Total general obligation bonds

Notes Payable;

General Obligation Notes:
Series of 2005
Series of 2005A
Series of 2008A
Series of 2008
Wabash Crossing Phase II
HUD Section 108,
1999-A
HUD Section 108,
2002-A

Total notes payable

Compensated absences

Total governmental activities

Obligations Obligations
Outstanding Debt Debt Outstanding Due Within

May 1, 2008 Additions Retirement  April 30, 2009 One Year
3 1,604,902 $ - $ 445797 $ 1189195 § 415895
2,600,000 - 260,000 2,340,000 260,000
10,510,000 - 460,000 10,050,000 470,000
24,515,000 - 1,095,000 23,820,000 1,125,000
4,705,000 - 100,000 4,605,000 165,000

- 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 -

{150,147) - {8,832) (141,315) -

(2,505,877) - (147 404) {2,358.473) -
41,678,968 10,000,000 2,204 561 49 474 407 2,435 995

2,150,000 - 2,150,000 - -
437,484 - 40,037 397,447 54,459

925,000 430,000 110,031 1,244 969 -

- 892,400 892,400 - -
4,471,960 - - 4,471,960 4,471,960
740,000 - 110,000 630,000 120,000
2,625.000 - 140,000 2.485.000 145,000
11,349.444 1,322,400 3,442 468 9,229,378 4791419
2,615,781 2,549,507 2,296,108 2,869,180 2,458 584
$ 56644,193 $13.871.907 §$7943137 $61.572963 3 0685998
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aprit 30, 2009

NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Obligations Obligations
Outstanding Debt Debt Outstanding Due Within
May 1, 2008 Additions Retirement  April 30, 2009 One Year

Business-Type activities:
Notes payable:

2001 IEPA loan $ 5619386 % - b 323,446 $ 5,295,940 $ 332,911
Series 2007 7.225.000 - - 7,225,000 -
Total business-type
activities $ 12.844.386 3 - $ 323446 $12.520.840 $§  332.911

Long-term obligations outstanding at April 30, 2009 are comprised of the following:
A. General Obligation Bonds
General Obligation Bonds, Series 1991
$17,955,730 1991 General Obligation Bonds dated September 1, 1991 due October 1,
2011; interest at 4.7 to 6.9 percent (principal and interest to be serviced by the general
revenues of the City) to be used for dredging and other capital projects.

Remaining principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Total

Year Principal Interest Debt Service
2010 3 415985 § 1,039,005 $ 1,455,000
2011 384,557 1,070,443 1,455,000
2012 358,643 1,096,357 1,455,000
Total 2 1,159,195 $ 3.205.805 $ 4,365,000

General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998

$65,200,000 1988 General Obligation Bonds dated June 30, 1998 due January 1, 2018; interest of
4.25 to 5.25 percent (principal and interest to be serviced by annual tax levy) to he used for
construction of the City library.

Remaining principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Total

Year Principal Interest Debt Service
2010 $ 260,000 $ 119,470 $§ 378470
2011 260,000 106,730 366,730
2012 260,000 93,990 353,090
2013 260,000 80,990 340,990
2014 260,000 67,730 327,730
2015-2018 1,040,000 136,370 1,176,370
Total $ 2340.000 $ 605280 $_ 2945280
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009
NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2004A

$12,245,000 2004 General Obligation Bonds dated March 1, 2004 due March 1, 2025; interest of
2.50 to 4.25 percent (principal and interest to be serviced by annual tax levy) to be used for various

capital projects.

Remaining principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Total

Year Principal Interest Debt Service
2010 $ 470,000 $ 385588 $ 855588
2011 485,000 372,075 857,075
2012 500,000 356,919 856,919
2013 515,000 341,294 856,294
2014 535,000 325,200 860,200
2015-20189 3,005,000 1,308,263 4,313,263
2020-2024 3,695,000 652,650 4,347,650
2025 845.000 35,913 880,913
Total $10,050.000 3 902 $ 13,827,902

General Obligation Bonds, Series 20048

$29,070,000 2004 General Obligation Bonds dated March 1, 2004 due March 1, 2025; interest of
2.50 to 4.3 percent (principal and interest to be serviced by annual tax levy) to refund Series 2000
bonds which refunded Series 1985 bonds which were used in construction of new water treatment

facility.

Remaining principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Total

Year Principal Interest Debt Service
2010 $ 1,125,000 $ 924779 $ 2,048,779
2011 1,150,000 896,654 2,046,654
2012 1,185,000 862,154 2,047,154
2013 1,225,000 823,641 2,048,641
2014 1,265,000 783,829 2,048,829
2015-2019 7,125,000 3,118,744 10,243,744
2020-2024 8,755,000 1,561,819 10,316,819
2025 1.990,000 85,570 2,075,570
Total $23,820,000 $ 9.057.190 32,877,190
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005

$4,705,000 2005 General Obligation Bonds dated November 1, 2005 due December 15, 2014,
interest of 3.00 to 3.60 percent {principal and interest to be serviced by annual tax levy) to refund
Series 1995 bonds which partially refunded Series 1991 bonds which were used for dredging and
other capital projects.

Remaining principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Total

Year Principal Interest Debt Service
2010 $ 165000 % 158,650 $ 323,650
2011 170,000 153,635 323,535
2012 175,000 148,095 323,095
2013 1,680,000 142,320 1,822,320
2014 1,740,000 85,200 1,825,200
2015 675,000 24,300 699,300
Total $ 4805000 § 712100 5 00

General Obligation Bonds, Series 2008

$10,000,000 2008 General Obligation Bonds dated December 15, 2008 due December 15, 2024,
interest of 2.75 to 5.0 percent to refinance certain outstanding indebtedness of the City and to
finance capital improvements in the City.

Remaining principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Total

Year Principal interest Debt Service
2010 $ - $ 418175 $ 419,175
2011 - 419,175 419,175
2012 235,000 419,175 654,175
2013 245,000 411,538 656,538
2014 250,000 402,963 652,963
2015 - 2019 3,730,000 1,717,650 5,447 650
2020 — 2024 5,135,000 782,925 5,817,925
2025 405,000 18,225 423,225
Total $10,000.000 $. 4590826 $ 14.590.826

B. Notes Payable
General Obligation Note (Wabash Crossing Phase Il), Series 2005
$4,750,000 drawdown note due December 31, 2009; interest calculated at 30-day LIBOR
plus 50 basis points (.995% at April 30, 2009).
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009
NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
B. Notes Payable (Continued)

Remaining principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Debt Service
2010 4 471,960 29.6 $ 4501624

General Obligation Note (Olde Towne Redevelopment Project), Series 2005A

$500,000 drawdown note due May 15, 2016; interest calculated at 30-day LIBOR plus 225
basis points (8.02% at April 30, 2009).

Remaining principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Debt Service
2010 $ 54,459 3 19,188 $ 73,647
2011 57,433 16,214 73,647
2012 60,569 13,078 73,647
2013 63,877 9,770 73,647
2014 67,365 6,282 73,647
2015 - 2017 93.744 1,327 95,071
Total $ 397447 $ 65,8598 $ 463,306

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Series 1999-A Certificates
$1,470,000 Contract for Loan Guarantee Assistance under Section 108 of the Housing and
Community Development Act of 1974 (Note B-95-MC-17-0008) due August 1, 2013,
interest of 5.83 to 6.33 percent.

Remaining principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Debt Service
2010 $ 120,000 $ 35,247 $ 155,247
2011 120,000 28,035 148,035
2012 120,000 20,703 140,703
2013 120,000 13,251 133,251
2014 150,000 4,748 154,748
Total $ 630,000 $ 101,984 $ 731984
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

B. Notes Payable (Continued)

U.S. Departrment of Housing and Urban Development Series 2002-A Certificates
$3,000,000 Contract for Loan Guarantee Assistance under Section 108 of the Housing and
Community Development Act of 1874 (Note B-95-MC-17-0008-A) due August 1, 2022;
interest of 2.99 to 6.12 percent.

Remaining principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Debt Service
2010 $ 145000 3 134,262 $ 279,262
2011 150,000 127,548 277,548
2012 155,000 120,287 275,287
2013 160,000 112,536 272,536
2014 165,000 104,180 269,180
2015-2019 900,000 376,399 1,276,399
2020-2023 810.000 99,873 909.873
Total $ 2.485,000 $ 1,075,085 $ 3560085
General Obligation Note, Series 2008A
$1,400,000 drawndown note due December 31, 2010; interest calculated at 30-day
LIBOR plus 225 basis points (2.677% at April 30, 2009) to be used for capital projects.
Remaining principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows:
Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Debt Service
2010 $ - $ 33,334 $ 33,334
2011 1.244 969 22,223 1,267,192
Total $ 1244 969 3 55,557 $ 1,300,526

Wabash Crossing Infrastructure Loans

The City has committed to the expenditure of up to $10,339,218 for the construction and
installation of infrastructure for the purpose of the redevelopment of the Near North in
conjunction with the Decatur Housing Authority (DHA) and Eastlake Management and
Development Corporation (Eastlake) as part of the HOPE VI grant awarded to the DHA
from the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development for the
rehabilitation and redevelopment of Longview Place and the area immediately adjacent
thereto. The project consists of the construction of 249 new residential units known as
Wabash Crossing along with the related construction and installation of certain items of
infrastructure such as streeis, sidewalks and water and sewer mains. As part of the
Development Agreement between the City, DHA, and Eastlake, DHA has committed to
make one or more loans or granis of development funding to the Revitalization in the
aggregate amount of the HOPE IV Grant and applicable portion of the Capital Fund less
DHA administrative, consultant, and other applicable costs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

B. Notes Payable (Continued)

ilinois Environmental Protection Agency 2001 Loan

The City has authorized the issuance of a loan with the lllinois Environmental Protection
Agency (IEPA) for $6,957 896 to finance the costs relating to the construction of the
Nitrate Removal facility. The term of the loan is for 20 years with an annual fixed loan
rate of 2.9050%. The semi-annual repayment dates for both principal and interest are
June 1 and December 1.

Remaining principal and interest payments to maturity are as follows:

Fiscal Total
Year Principal Interest Debt Service
2010 $ 332911 $ 151,447 $ 484,358
2011 342 652 141,705 484,357
2012 352,679 131,679 484,358
2013 362,998 121,359 484,357
2014 373,620 110,738 484,358
2015-2019 2,038,628 383,161 2,421,789
2020-2023 1,492 452 82.834 1,575,286
Total § 5295940 $ 1,122,923 $_ 6418863

General Obligation Note, Series 2007

$7,225,000 General Obligation Note to pay the costs related o the acquisition of the

Decatur Conference Center and Hotel dated October 5, 2007 due December 15, 2010;

interest at 5.15% (principal and interest to be serviced by annual tax levy).

Remaining principal and interest payment to maturity are as follows:
Fiscal Total
Year Principal [nterest Debt Service
2010 $ - $ 372,088 $ 372,088
2011 7,225,000 372,087 7,597,087
Total $ 7225000 § 744175 $ 7969175

C. Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees fo accumulate a limited amount of earned
compensated absences for unused vacation time, which will be paid to employees upon
separation from City service. In Governmental Fund Types, the cost of these benefits is
recognized when payments are made to employees. Enterprise Fund Types accrue
vacation time benefits in the period in which they are earned. A liability representing the
City's commitment to fund such costs from future operations has been recorded in the
Statement of Net Assets in the amount of $2,869,180.
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NOTE 8 — LONG-TERM DEBT {CONTINUED)
D. Conduit Debt

The City, through its participation in an intergovernmental agreement with several lllinois
municipalities, has issued Collateralized Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds fo
provide financial assistance to low and moderate income residents for the purchase of
single family residences. The bonds are secured by property financed and are payable
solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of
the bonds, ownership of the acquired property transfers to the resident. Therefore, none
of the participating municipalities are obligated in any manner for repayment of the bonds.
Accordingly, the bonds are not reported as a liability in the accompanying financial
statements. The original amount of the issuance was $250,000,000.

NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS — DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS
A. Plan Descriptions, Provisions and Funding Policies

The City contributes to three defined benefit pension plans, the lllinois Municipal
Retirement Fund (IMRF), a defined benefit agent muitiple employer public employee
retirement system; the Police Pension Plan which is a single employer pension plan; and
the Firefighter's Pension Plan which is also a single employer pension plan. None of the
pension plans issue a separate report.

IMRF

Plan Description. The City of Decatur's defined benefit pension plan for Regular
employees provides retirement and disability benefits, post retirement increases, and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The City of Decatur's plan is affiliated
with the lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan.
Benefit provisions are established by statute and may only be changed by the General
Assembly of the State of lllincis. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may
be obtained on-line at www.imrf.org.

Funding Folicy. As set by statute, the City of Decatur's Regular plan members are
required to contribute 4.50 percent of their annual covered salary. The statutes require
employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to
finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The City of Decatur's contribution
rate for calendar year 2008 was 7.97 percent of annual covered payroll. The City of
Decatur also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits and supplemental
retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for
disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the
supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.
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NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS — DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS
(CONTINUED)

A. Plan Descriptions, Provisions and Funding Policies (Continued)
IMRF {Continued)

Annual Pension Cost. For 2008, the City of Decatur's annual pension cost of
$1,246,214 for the Regular plan was equal to the City of Decatur's required and actual

contributions.

Three-Year Trend Information for the Regular Plan
Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension Cost of APC Pension
Ending {APC) Contributed Obligation
12/31/08 3 1,246,214 100% $ -
12/31/07 1,324,877 100% -
12/31/06 1,278,345 100% -

The required contribution for 2008 was determined as part of the December 31, 2006
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial
assumptions at December 31, 2008, included (a) 7.50% investment rate of return (net of
administrative and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 4.00% a
year, attributable to inflation, (c} additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.4%
to 11.6% per year depending on age and service, attributable to seniority/merit, and (d)
post-retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of the City of
Decatur's Regular plan assets was determined using technigues that spread the effects
of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period with a
20% corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. The City of Decatur's
Regular plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at
the December 31, 2006, valuation was 24 years.

Funded Stafus and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2008, the most recent
actuarial valuation date, the Regular plan was 76.92 percent funded. The actuarial
accrued liability for benefits was $42,879,285 and the actuarial value of assets was
$32,983,627, resuiting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $9,895,658.
The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$15,636,313 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 63 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability
for benefits.
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NOTE 9 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS — DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS
(CONTINUED)

A. Ptan Descriptions, Provisions and Funding Policies (Continued)
Police Pension Plan
The Police Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers all
sworn police personnel. Although this is a single-employer pension plan, the defined
benefits and employee and employer contribution levels are governed by lllinois State
Statutes and may be amended only by the Illincis legislature. The City accounts for the
plan as a pension trust fund.
At May 1, 2008 the Police Pension Plan membership consisted of;

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and
terminated employees entitled to but not yet receiving

benefits 121
Current employees

Vested and nonvested 152

Total 273

The following is a summary of the Police Pension Plan as provided for in lllinois State
Statutes.

The Police Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disahility
benefits, Covered employees attaining the age of 50 or more with 20 or more years of
creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit of one-half of the
salary attached to the rank held on the last day of service, or for one year prior to the last
day, whichever is greater. The pension shall be increased by 2.5 percent of such salary
for each additional year of service over 20 years up o 30 years. Employees with at least
8 years but less than 20 years of credited service may retire at or after the age of 60 and
receive a reduced benefit.

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Police
Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20 years of
service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without accumulated
interest. The City is required to coniribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance
the plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary. Administrative costs are
financed through investment earnings. By the year 2033 the City's contributions must
accumulate to the point where the past service cost for the Police Pension Plan is fully
funded.
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NOTE 9 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS — DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS
(CONTINUED)

A. Plan Descriptions, Provisions and Funding Policies {Continued)
Firefighters’ Pension Plan
The Firefighters’ Pension Plan is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that
covers all sworn fire personnel. Although this is a single-employer pension plan, the
defined benefits and employee and employer contribution levels are governed by lllincis
State Statutes and may be amended only by the lllinois legislature. The City accounis for
the plan as a pension trust fund.
At May 1, 2008 the Firefighters’ Pension Plan membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and
terminated employees entitled to but not yet receiving

benefits 116
Current employees

Vested and nonvested 114

Total _ 230

The following is a summary of the Firefighters' Pension Plan as provided for in lllinois
State Statutes.

The Firefighters’ Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability
benefits. Covered employees attaining the age of 50 or mere with 20 or more years of
creditable service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit of one-half of the
monthly salary attached to the rank held on the date of retirement. The pension shall be
increased by 2.5 percent of such monthly salary for each additional month over 20 years
of service through 30 years of service. Employees with at least 10 years but less than 20
years of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit.

Covered employees are required to contribute 9.46% of their base salary to the
Firefighters’ Pension Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment with less than 20
years of service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without
accumulated interest. The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts
necessary to finance the plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary.
Administrative costs are financed through investment earnings. By the year 2033 the
City's contributions must accumulate to the point where the past service cost for the
Firefighters' Pension Plan is fully funded.
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NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS — DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS
(CONTINUED)

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters
Basis of Accounting

The financial statement disclosures are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Employee and employer contributions are generally recognized when due. If
contributions are not made when due, they are only recognized as contributions (and a
related receivable) if they are due pursuant to formal commitments, or because of
statutory or contractual requirements. Separate plan financial statements are not
prepared for the police and fire pension plans. Benefits and refunds of the defined benefit
pension plan are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the
plan,

Method Used to Value Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost,
which approximates fair value. Securities traded on national exchanges are valued at the
last reported sales price. Investments that do not have any established market, if any,
are reported at estimated fair value.

Significant Investments

There were no investments (other than U.S. government and U.S. government
guaranteed obligations, and mutual funds) in any one organization that represents 5
percent or more of net assets available for benefits.

Related Party Transactions

There are no securities of the City of Decatur or any other related parties included in plan
assets.
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NOTE 9 —- EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS — DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS
(CONTINUED)

C. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation

The City's annual pension cost for the current year and related information for each plan

is as follows:
lllinois
Municipal Police Firefighters’
Retirement Pension Pension
Contribution Rates:
Employer 7.97% 28.30% 39.30%
Employee 4.50% 9.91% 9.46%
Annual pension cost $ 1,246,214 $ 2,968,274 $ 2,992,651
Contributions made $ 1,246,214 $ 2,068,274 $ 2,992,651
Actuarial valuation date 12/31/2008 05/01/2008 05/01/2008
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Entry Age Entry Age
Normal Normal Normal
Amortization method Level % of Level % of Level % of
Projected Payroll  Projected Payroll  Projected Payroll
Closed Basis Closed Basis Closed Basis
Amortization period 24 years 25 years 25 years
Asset valuation method 5-year Market Market
Smoothed Market
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 7.5% 7.25% 7.25%
Compounded Compounded Compounded
Annually Annually Annually
Projected salary increases 0.4t0 11.6% 5.00% 5.00%
Inflation rate included 4.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Cost of living adjustments 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
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NOTE 9 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS — DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

(CONTINUED)

C. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation (Continued)

The pension liability at transition was determined in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 27, "Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Gaovernmental Employers”. There
was no net pension obligation for the IMRF Plan at transition or at year end. There also

was no pension liability at year-end for the Palice and Firefighters’ Pension Plans.

D. Trend Information

Employer annual pension cost (APC), actual contributions and the net pension obligation
(NPO) are as follows. The NPO is the cumulative difference between the APC and the

contributions actually made.

lllinois
Municipal
Year Retirement
Annual pension cost (APC) 2007 $ 1,278,345
2008 1,324,877
2009 1,246,214
Percentage of APC contributed 2007 100%
2008 100%
2009 100%
Net pension cobligation 2007 3 -
2008 -
2009 -

Comparative information for 2008 is not yet available.
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NOTE 9 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS — DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

(CONTINUED)

E. Financial Statements

The following information represents the financial position and activity of the pension trust

funds at April 30, 2009:

Police Fire
Pension Pension
Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments $ 3,295,772 $ 6,439,507 $ 9,735,279
Taxes receivable 111,400 90,939 202,339
Accrued interest 316,274 192,210 508,484
Long-term investmenis, at fair value:
U.S. Government obligations 33,050,754 22,365,259 55,416,013
Mutual funds 14,173,875 14,492,425 28,666,300
Common stock 6,700,683 3,062,889 9,763,572
Corporate bonds 1,187,298 1.636,121 2,833,419
Total long-term investments 55,122 610 41,556,694 96,679,304
TOTAL ASSETS $58,846,056 $48,279,350 $ 107,125,406
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits 58,846,056 $48,279,350 $ 107,125,406
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer $ 2,955,811 $ 2,977,841 $ 5,933,752
Plan member 1,046,104 783,239 1,829,343
Total contributions 4,002,015 3,761,080 7,763,095
Investment earnings (loss).
Interest and dividends 1,778,280 1,351,072 3,129,352
Net decrease in the fair value of
investments (5,559,610) (5,879,382) (11,438,992)
Total investment loss (3,781,330) {4,528,310) (8,309,640)
Less investment expense 142,119 97,282 239,401
Net investment loss (3,923 449) {4,625,592) (8.549,041)
Total additions (deductions) 78,566 (864.512) {785,946)

73




CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 9 — EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS — DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS
(CONTINUED)

E. Financial Statements (Continued)

Police Fire
Pension Pension
Fund Fund Total
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits and refunds $ 4,273,504 $ 4,881,160 $ 9,154,754
Administrative expense 48,813 39,793 88.606
Total deductions 4,322 407 4.920,853 9,243,360
Net decrease (4,243,841) (5,785,465) {10,029,306)
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 63,089,897 54 064,815 117,154,712
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $58,846,056 $48,279.350 07,125,406

NOTE 10 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The City participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs, principal of which are the
Community Development Block Grant, HOME, and Federal Transit Administration programs.
These programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives.
The audits of these programs for and including the year ended April 30, 2009, have not yet been
conducted.  Accordingly, the City's compliance with applicable grant requirements will be
established at some future date. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by
the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although the City expects such amounts, if
any, to be insignificant.

The City, as landowner of an industrial center, has a potential environmental liability arising from
the activities of various tenants at the site. The City has entered into a cost sharing agreement with
three other parties to fund an investigation to determine the degree of each party’s responsibility.
While there is no current claim by any State, Federal, or local agency against the City, any such
agency could take action to accelerate a clean up of the property. The City and its legal counsel
believe that primary liability will rest with the prior owners. No estimate of the liability can be made
at this time.

NOTE 11 — LITIGATION

There are several lawsuits pending against the City for various reasons. The outcome and
eventual liability of the City, if any, in these cases are not known at this time and, accordingly, no
specific provisions for these lawsuits are included in the financial statements. However, based
upon past experience, management believes that the self-insurance funds and other insurance
coverage maintained by the City are sufficient to cover any potential claims.
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NOTE 12 —- COMMITMENTS
The City has the following commitments:

A. As a result of the City's involvement in the construction of the Civic Center building, the
City and the Civic Center Authority entered into an intergovernmental cooperation
agreement which included a negotiated 99 year rent-free lease for office space. The
lease terms require the City to pay only utility and maintenance costs based on square
footage occupied, which is approximately 40 percent of the space.

In applying the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, Accounting for
Leases (SFAS 13}, this lease should be capitalized due to its term and included in the
general long-term debt account group. However, since these costs represent executory
costs and are not quantifiable, the lease has not been capitalized and is classified as an
operating lease. Also, since the costs are not quantifiable, the future minimum lease
payments are not determinable.

The City is committed to maintaining a $100,000 cash operating reserve and paying all
cash operating deficits of the Civic Center Authority.

B. The City has entered inte a noncancellable 12-month lease with the Decatur Public
Building Commission (DPBC). The City is leasing the law facility center from the DPBC.
The lease requires the City to pay an annual rental payment of $267,396. The DPBC
shall pay from the City's Law Enforcement Surplus Account $41,376. During the year
ended April 30, 2009, the City paid $226,020 to the DPBC.

In applying SFAS 13 the lease has been determined to be an operating lease and should
not be capitalized. The lease has been classified as an operating lease since the fair
value of the center cannot be objectively allocated (the City has an approximate 14
percent interest) and the estimated economic life of the center is estimated to be greater
than 27 years.

As of April 30, 2009 there are no future minimum rental payments and the lease expires
November 30, 20089.

C. In 1990, the City and the Sanitary District of Decatur (District} entered into
intergovernmental agreements to rehabilitate South Broadway-Cantrell Streets sewer,
Staley sewer, Spring Creek sewer, and West Mound sewer. The State of lllinois EPA
issued a 20-year loan to the District. The City is contributing funds to the District to cover
a portion of the District's loan payments. The last principal and interest payments will be
made April 5, 2015. The City's share of the remaining payments at April 30, 2009 is as
follows:
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NOTE 12 — COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

Year Ending

April 30 Amount
2010 L 146,804
2011 146,804
2012 146,804
2013 137,834
2014 08,306
2015 97,066
Total 3 773,618

D. The City has committed to the expenditure of up to $10,339,218, of which $7,045,864 has
been paid or expended for the construction and installation of infrastructure for the
purpose of the redevelopment of the Near North in conjunction with the Decatur Housing
Authority (DHA) and Eastlake Management and Development Corporation (Eastlake) as
part of the HOPE VI grant awarded to the DHA from the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development for the rehabilitation and redevelopment of Longview
Place and the area immediately adjacent thereto. The project consists of the construction
of 249 new residential units known as Wabash Crossing along with the related
construction and installation of certain items of infrastructure such as streets, sidewalks
and water and sewer mains.

E. Other Commitments:

At April 30, 2008, the City had contractual commitments of approximately $521,432 for
capital improvement programs.

NOTE 13 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is self-insured for worker's compensation, comprehensive general liability, employee
dishonesty, property damage, medical, dental, and unemployment compensation claims. The
unemployment compensation is funded totally by the City. The medical program is insured for
amounts above the self-insurance retention limits of $200,000 per individual and approximately
$6,908,052 in the aggregate by an insurance carrier. The other programs are insured for amounts
above the self-insurance retention limits of $25,000 - $200,000 by an insurance carrier. There
have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year. During the past
three fiscal years, there have been no settlements that exceeded insurance coverage.

Rates are developed annually to fund the self-insurance programs, both claims and administrative

costs, in the self-insurance internal service fund. All funds and departments of the City are charged
monthly thereafter based on their loss history and exposure.
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NOTE 13 — RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The claims liability of $3,491,311 and $3,077,412 reported in the Fund at April 30, 2009 and 2008
respectively, is based on the requirements of GASB Statement No. 10, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, which requires that a liability for claims
be reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is
probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount of
the loss can be reasonably estimated. Changes in the Fund's claims liability account in fiscal years
2009 and 2008 were:

May 1, 2008 to  May 1, 2007 to
April 30_ 2008  April 30, 2008

Beginning of fiscal year liability $ 3,077,412 $ 3,071,157
Current year claims and changes in estimates 9,146,037 8,836,960
Claims payments (8,732,138) (8,830,705)
Total $ 3.481.311 $ 3077 412

NOTE 14 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The City has an agreement with the Civic Center Authority whereby the City occupies a portion of
the Civic Center Building as municipal offices and reimburses the Authority for its portion of
occupancy related expenses.

The City is required to maintain the Authority's operating reserve fund at $100,000. The City is
required to replenish this fund whenever it falls below $100,000. The Authority has not required
this fund to be maintained at $100,000, but reimbursement has been made as cash flow dictates.
During 2009, the City contributed $348,148 to the Authority.

During 1999, the City entered into an agreement with the Authority {o finance the replacement of
the heating, ventilating and air conditioning system controls in the Civic Center Building. The
agreement provided that the City pay the entire cost of the replacement contract of $189,112, and
that the Authority will pay the City $112,000 in annual installments of $16,000, no interest, over
seven years beginning January 2, 1999. The receivable from the Authority has been recorded at
present value using a 7% discount factor.

During 2000, the City entered into an agreement with the Authority to finance any repairs
necessary to upkeep the facility as determined by the architects. Roof replacement and
tuckpointing repairs were completed in 2000. The City has an agreement that the City pay the
entire cost of $451,961, and the Authority will pay the City $264,899 in annual instaliments of
$25,000, no interest, until paid off beginning January 2, 2001. The receivable from the Authority
has been recorded at present value using a 7% discount factor.

The City has agreed to defer repayment under these two agreements to a time when the Authority
can repay them.
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The present value of the amounts due from the Authority under these agreements is as follows:

HVAC Roof and
System Tuckpoiniing Total
Prior years' payments — deferred $ 54,195 $ 134,094 $ 188,289
Due in:
2010 - 22,457 22 457
2011 - 13,878 13,878
54,195 170,429 224,624
Current - (22 457) (22 A57)
Noncurrent 3 54,185 $ 147972 3 202 167

Accrued interest on the deferred prior year payments as of April 30, 2009 is as follows:

HVAC Roof and
System Tuckpointing Total

3 9,805 3 65,804 3 75,7089
NOTE 15 - FUND EQUITY
The following funds had a deficit fund balance at April 30, 2009:

CDBG Fund $ 79,338
Self-Insurance Fund $ 254615

The above deficits are expected to be eliminated from future revenues and/or transfers.
NOTE 16 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, effective May 1, 2008, This statement requires the costs of postemployment benefits
other than pension benefits to be recognized over a period that approximates an employee’s
years of service. Implementation of this statement resulted in recording a liability of $311,091
as of April 30, 2009. Additional disclosures required by this statement are included below.
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NOTE 16 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED})
a. Plan Description

In addition to providing the pension benefits described in Note 9, the City provides
postemployment health care benefits (OPEB) for retired employees through a single employer
defined benefit plan (Retiree Healthcare Program). The benefits, benefit levels, employee
contributions and employer contributions are governed by the City and can be amended by the
City through its personnel manual and union contracts. The plan is not accounted for as a trust
fund, as an irrevocable trust has not been established to account for the plan. The plan does
not issue a separate report. The activity of the plan is reported in the City's governmental and
business-type activities.

b. Benefits Provided

The City provides continued health insurance coverage at the active employee rate to all eligible
employees in accordance with lllinois statutes, which creates an implicit subsidy of retiree health
insurance. To be eligible for benefits, an employee must qualify for retirement under one of the
City's retirement plans. Upon a retiree reaching age 65 years of age, Medicare becomes the
primary insurer and the retiree can choose to not participate in the plan or continue under the
City’s plan at a Medicare Supplement rate.

¢. Membership

The City’s Retiree Healthcare Program includes three employee groups: Fire, Police and all
other City, which are the same as those used for the pension plan.

At May 1, 2008, membership consisted of;

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 95
Active employees 572
Total 667
Participating employers 1

d. Funding Policy
The City is not required to and currently does not advance fund the cost of benefits that will

become due and payable in the future. Active employees do not contribute to the plan until
retirement,

79



CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009
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Premium cost sharing arrangements vary depending on the bargaining unit and date of
retirement. Qualified retirees pay 100 percent of the premium cost for single and dependent
coverage.

e. Annual OPEB Costs and Net OPEB Obligation

The City's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense} is calculated based on
the annual required contribution (ARC) of the City, an amount actuarially determined in
accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an on-going basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty
years.

The City first had an actuarial valuation performed for the plan as of May 1, 2008 to determine
the funded status of the plan as of that date as well as the employers annual required
contribution (ARC) for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2009. The City's annual OPEB cost
(expense) of $744,600 was equal to the ARC for the fiscal year 2009, as the transition liability
was set at zero as of May 1, 2008, The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual
OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2009 was as follows:

Percentage
Annual of Annual
Fiscal Year OPEB Employer OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Ended Cost  Contributions Contributed Obligation
April 30, 2009 $ 744600 $ 433,509 58.2% $ 311,091

The net OPEB obligation as of May 1, 2008 (most recent information available}, was calculated
as follows:
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NOTE 16 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
Annual required contribution $ 744,600

Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution -

Annual OPEB cost 744,600
Contributions made 433,509
Increase in net OPEB obligation 311,091

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year -
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 311,091

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The funded status of the plan as of May 1, 2008, was as
follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 8,759,700
Actuarial value of plan assets -

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 8,759,700
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) N/A
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll N/A

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts
determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the ARCs of the employer are subject to
continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear
trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the AALs for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and
include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-
term perspective of the calculations.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 30, 2009

NOTE 16 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

In the May 1, 2008 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a discount rate of 3.25 percent and an ultimate healthcare tread
rate of 4.03 percent. The calculations assume a level-percentage-of-pay 30-year open
amortization period for ECO and Regular retirees. The remaining amortization period at May 1,
2008, was 30 years.

The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the City has not advance funded its
obligation.

NOTE 17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In May 2008, the City offered a Voluntary Severance Plan to all employees whereby the
employees may choose to terminate their employment for incentives which include payment of all
accrued vacation, personal, and compensatory time, payment of one week's salary for every two
years of service, and be eligible for several health insurance options. Employees are required to
communicate their decision to participate by June 22, 2009 and must terminate employment by
October 30, 2009.

This information is an integral part of the accompanying financial statements.
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Year
Ended

April 30

2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003

2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003

2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003

RSI-2
CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Annual
Required Percentage
Contribution Contributed

POLICE PENSION FUND

$ 2,968,274 100.00%
2,890,037 100.00%
2,766,759 100.00%
2,311,360 100.00%
2,160,100 100.00%
1,764,070 100.00%

FIREFIGHTERS' PENSION FUND

$ 2,992,651 100.00%
3,069,618 100.00%
2,782,070 100.00%
2,172,022 100.00%
1,881,190 100.00%
1,807,994 100.00%

IMRF

$ 1,246,214 100.00%
1,324,877 100.00%
1,278,345 100.00%

880,429 100.00%
370,253 100.00%
118,560 100.00%
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

CASH BASIS (NON-GAAP) BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL AND LIBRARY FUNDS
Year Ended April 30, 2009

General Fund

Variance from

Final Budget
Original Finai Favorable
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 14,801,025 B 14,801,025 $ 15,214,353 3 413,328
Charges for service 141,041 141,041 104,958 (36,083)
Investment Income and net increase in
fair value of investments 270,600 270,500 137,017 (133,483}
Intergovernmental 30,953,283 30,853,283 29,889,102 (1,064,181)
Licenses and permils 744,400 744 400 760,044 15,644
Fines and fees 798,000 798,000 853,289 55,299
Other revenue 366,100 366,100 781,152 415,052
Total revenues 48,074,349 48,074,349 47,739,925 (334,424)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Legistative 100,549 103,580 93,797 9,793
Executive 520,957 522,889 501,308 21,580
Managemeni services 634,656 635,734 569,407 66,327
Legal 599,460 600,961 562,010 38,951
Financial management 1,658,423 1,737,797 1,629,699 108,188
Pollce 21,289,747 22,163,291 21,666,687 486,604
Fire 14,960,918 15,463,937 15,142,938 320,998
Economic and urban development 3,484,314 3,960,960 2,760,323 1,200,637
Public works 9,216,477 9,530,287 9,007,183 523,104
Other non-departmental charges 3,823,335 3,361,041 3,010,728 350,313
Total expenditures 56,288,837 58,070,497 54,943,981 3,126,516
Excess {deficlency} of revenues
over expenditures {8.214,488) {9,956,148) (7,204,056) 2,792,002
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of assets 21,000 21,000 36,107 15,107
Transfers In 4,786,416 4,786,416 4,735,223 (51,193}
Transfers out {2,043,256) {1.810,856} {1,481,256) 429,600
Total other financing sources (Uses) 2,764,160 2,896,560 3,290,074 393,514
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expendiiures and other financing
sources (uses} § (6450328 8 {7,099 588) (3913,882) 3% 3.185 606
NET CHANGES IN BUDGETARY BASIS TO GAAP 134,328
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures and other
financing sources {uses) - GAAP basis (3,779,653)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 11,621,202
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR 5 7,841,549
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Library Fund
Variance from
Final Budget
Criginal Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
3,501,621 3,501,621 b 3,472,430 B (29,191}
58,250 58,250 0,827 (48,423)
458,000 458,000 350,822 (107,478)
89,650 99,650 91,110 (B,540)
33,000 33,000 57,846 24,846
4,180,521 4,150,521 3.881,735 {168,786)
4,183,610 4,154,082 3,946,440 207,642
4,153,610 4,154,082 3,946,440 207,642
(3.083) {3,561} 35,285 38,856
{1,200) {1,200) {1,200) -
{1,200) {1,200) (1.200) -
(4,280 (4,761} 34,005 b 38,856
154,050
188,145
513,644
§____801.789
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
April 30, 2009

NOTE 1 -~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying budgetary schedules are prepared on the cash basis of accounting.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for revenues from specific taxes or other earmarked
revenue sources which, by statute, charter provision, or local ordinance, are designated to finance
particular functions or activities of the government as follows:

The lilinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) accounts for revenues, including property tax levies
and charges to other funds, and expenditures to the State administered retirement system for all
general service employees.

Main Place Section 108 Loan Guarantee Fund accounts for federal revenues to rehabilitate
commercial facilities.

The HOME Fund accounts for federal funds used in a revolving loan program for subsidizing the
purchase by first time buyers of homes within designated areas of the City.

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Fund accounts for entitlement revenues from the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and designated expenditures in the
areas of housing and neighborhood revitalization, public facilities improvement, and economic
development.

The TIF Fund accounts for the tax increment financing for capital improvements in the declining
areas.

The Drug Enforcement Fund accounts for revenues received through drug seizure forfeitures and
expenditures to enhance law enforcement efforts.

The Municipal Band Fund accounts for revenues, including property taxes levied for this activity,
and expenditures for the City's Municipal Band.

The Motor Fuel Tax Fund accounts for revenues, including the City's motor fuel tax allotment from
the State, and expenditures for street improvements and traffic light maintenance.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

Debt Service Funds are used {o account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of principal and interest on general obligation debt, serial and term, other than revenue
debt issued for and serviced by a governmental enterprise.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for revenues, including transfers from other funds, and
expenditures for the purpose of servicing general obligation debt issued to finance the
improvements of streets, the dredging of Faries Park Basin of Lake Decatur, and the purchase
of communication equipment.

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary
funds or trust funds).

The 2004 Bond Capital Fund is used to account for capital improvements that are financed by
the proceeds of the 2004A General Obligation Bonds.

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for continuous capital projects, which are financed primarily
from intergovernmental revenues, charges for service, and investment income. This fund
accounts for revenues and expenditures for numerous related capital projects.

The Letter of Credit Project Fund is used to account for capital improvements that are financed
by the proceeds of a letter of credit.

The Wabash Crossing LOC Fund is used to account for the City's portion of Wabash Crossing
Phase II.

The 2008 Project Fund is used to account for capital improvements that are financed by the
proceeds from the 2008A General Obligation Bonds.
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ASSETS

Cash and investments

Receivables;
Property taxes, net
Ilinois Municipal Sales Tax
Cther taxes
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Accounts receivable
Notes receivable
Other

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Due to other funds
Other accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Debt service
Encumbrances
Unreserved, as reporied in:
Special revenue
Capital projects

Total fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

EXHIBIT 1

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
April 30, 2009
Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects
Funds Funds Funds Total
$ 3572579 5 204,802 8,934,102 $ 12,711,583
1,117,818 199,038 - 1,316,856
- - 153,750 153,750
- - 348,657 346,657
386,731 - - 386,731
85,731 - - 95,731
54,078 20,155 36,555 110,788
1,025,840 - - 1,025,840
552 434 - 986
§_©£263329 $ 424 529 9.471.084 316148922
$ 86,348 $ - - 3 B6,348
- - 360,585 360,585
285,248 - - 285,248
426,417 - - 426,417
1,140,823 219,182 68,800 1,428,815
1,938,836 219,192 429,385 2,587,413
- 205,337 - 205,337
- - 2,641,976 2,641,976
4,314,493 - - 4,314,493
- - 6,399,703 5,359,703
4,314,483 205,337 9,041,679 13,561,508
362533729 $ 424,529 9,471,064 5 _16.148,922
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Year Ended April 30, 2009

EXHIBIT 2

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects
Funds Funds Funds Total
REVENUES
Taxes $ 2,246,773 940,664 5 - 3 3,187,443
[nvestment inceme and net increase in
fair value of investments 36,374 4,554 41,598 82,526
Intergovernmental 5,323,581 - 2,650,215 7,973,756
Fines and fees 319,880 - 92,782 412 662
Other revenue 258,776 - 69,512 328,288
Total revenues 8,185,390 945,218 2,854,107 11,884,715
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 4,673,635 146,803 - 4,820,438
Public safety 260,354 - - 260,354
Culture and recreation 774158 - - 77415
Highways and streets 1,809,653 - 3,271,984 5,081,643
Debt service:
Principal retirement 110,000 2,500,797 3,192 468 5,803,265
Interest and fisgal charges 42,029 3.212,.349 137,250 3,391,628
Total expenditures 5,973,082 5,859,949 6,601,702 19,434,743
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 1,212,298 (4.914,731) (3,747,595) (7,450,028)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Debt proceeds - - 11,322,400 11,322,400
Transfers in 703,481 4,747 595 372,862 5,823,938
Transfers out {1,261,122) - (607.,409) (1,868,531)
Total other financing sources (uses) (557.641) 4,747 595 11,087,853 15,277,807
Net change in fund balances 654,657 (167,1386) 7,340,258 7,827,779
FUND BALANCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,659,636 372,473 1,701,421 5,733,730
FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR 3 4,314,493 205,337 3 0,041,679 5 13,561,509
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ASSETS

Cash and investments

Receivables:
Property taxes, net
Due from cther governments
Due from other funds
Accounts recelvable
Notes receivable
Cther

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Other accrued liabiiities
Deferred revenue

Total liabllitles

Fund Balances:
Unreserved

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

April 30, 2008
Main Place
Section 108
Loan Guarantee HOME CDBG
IMRF Fund Fund Fund
5 244 701 109 68,279 5 13,368
1,043,568 - - -
- - - 95,731
- - 844,093 181,747
562 - - -
$...1.288.821 109 913,372 3 200,846
$ - - 28,728 $ 57,620
- - - 285,248
50,585 - - 27,316
1,042,273 - - -
1,092,868 - 28,728 370,184
195,953 109 884,644 {79,338)
§_1.208.821 0% 213,372 § 200845
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EXHIBIT 3

93

Drug Municipal Motor
TiF Enforcement Band Fuel Tax
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

] 843,067 3 705,232 5 B,090 § 1,668,733 % 3,572,579
- - 74,250 - 1,117,818

- - - 386,731 386,731

- - - - 96,731

- - - 54,078 54,078

- - - - 1,025,840

- - - - 552

§ 943,067 3 105,232 3 82,340 3 2,129,542 § 6253329
3 - B - 8 - 3 - 5 86,348
- - - - 285,248

- 348,506 - - 426,417

- - 74,250 24,300 1,140,823

- 348,506 74,250 24,300 1,938,836

B843.067 356,726 8,080 2,105,242 4,314,483

H 843,067 i 108,232 :d §2.340 § 2128542 5 62533929



CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Main Place
Section 108
Loan Guarantee HOME CDBG
IMRF Fund Fund Fund
REVENUES
Taxes B 743,459 $ - 3 - 3 -
Investment income and net increase in
fair value of Investments 3,474 - - -
Intergovernmental 58,766 - 475,009 2,283,164
Fines and fees - - - -
Other revenue - 41,038 21,463 4,300
Total revenues 805,699 41,038 486,472 2,287 464
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 1,383,770 - 465,457 2,180,984
Public safety - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - -
Highways and streets - - - -
Debt service:
Principal retirement - 110,000 - -
Interest and fiscal charges - 42,028 - -
Total expenditures 1,383,770 152,028 465,457 2,180,984
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures {578,071) (110,991) 31,015 106,480
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transfers in 417,637 152,029 - -
Transfers out - - - {150,181)
Total other financing scurces (uses}) 417,637 152,029 - (150,181)
Net change In fund balances (160,434) 41,038 31,015 {43,701)
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT),
BEGINNING OF YEAR 356,387 {40,928) 853,629 {35,637)
FUND BALANCE {DEFICIT),
END CF YEAR 3 195,953 $ 109 3 584,544 3 (79,338}
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Drug Municipal Motor
TIF Enforcement Band Fuel Tax
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

1,428,903 - 74417 3 - $ 2,246,779
11,027 6,098 57 14,818 36,374
202,080 - - 2,304,562 5,323,561

- 319,880 - - 319,880

- 489 2,489 188,987 258,776
1,642,010 327,377 76,963 2,508,367 8,185,380
643,424 - - - 4,673,635

- 260,354 - - 260,354

- - 77,415 - 77,415

- - - 1,808,659 1,809,659

- - - - 110,000

- - - - 42,029
643,424 260,354 77415 1,808,659 6,973,092
998,586 67,023 (452) 688,708 1,212,298
133,815 - - - 703,481
(770,662) - - (340,279) (1,261,122)
(636,847) - - {340,279) {657.841)
361,738 67,023 {452} 358,420 654,657
481,328 280,703 8,642 1,746,813 3,659,836
843,067 356,728 8.090 § 2105242 $ 4314493
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EXHIBIT &

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXFENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
CASH BASIS (NON-GAAP) BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Variance from

Final Budget
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Property taxes 3 749,641 $ 743,458 $ (6,182)
Investment income 7,000 3474 (3,526)
Intergovernmental:
Replacement tax 100,000 100,000 -
Total revenues 858,641 846,933 (9,708)
EXPENDITURES
General Government:
Contributions for employees' pension
and social security 1,825,000 1,492 786 332,214
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (968,359) (645,853} 322,506
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES
Transfers in 1,012,000 417,637 {594,363)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other financing
sourcas 3 43,641 3 (228218} & (271.857)

06



EXHIBIT 6

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
MAIN PLACE SECTION 108 LOAN GUARANTEE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
CASH BASIS (NON-GAAP) BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Variance from

Fina] Budget
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service:
Principal retirement 3 110,000 3 110,000 5 -
Interest and fiscal charges 42,030 42,028 1
Total expenditures 152,030 152,029 1
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 152,030 162,029 {1)

Excess of other financing
sources over expenditures 3 - 3 - 3 -
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EXHIBIT 7

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
HOME FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
CASH BASIS (NON-GAAP) BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Variance from

Final Budget
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Federal grants 3 2,088,921 3 475,009 3 (1.614,912)
Loan repayment 61,000 80,679 29,679
Total revenues 2,150,921 565,688 (1,585,233)
EXPENDITURES
General Government:
Economic and urban development 1,874,181 563,243 1,310,938
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures § 276,740 $ 2,445 3 (274,295)
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EXHIBIT 8

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
CASH BASIS (NON-GAAP) BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Variance from

Final Budget
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Federal grant 3 3,453,954 3 2,283,164 5 (1,170,790}
Other revenue 6,500 4,150 {2,350)
Total revenues 3,460,454 2,287,314 {1,173,140)
EXPENDITURES
General Government:
Public services 2,296,000 1,568,957 727,043
Personnel services 558,668 546,896 11,772
Contractual services 103,881 61,928 41,953
Commuodities 3,050 1,000 2,050
Other charges 3,443 1,280 2,163
Total expenditures 2,965,042 2,180,061 784,981
Excess (deficlency) of revenues
over expenditures 495,412 107,253 {388,159)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 9,000 14,066 5,066
Transfers out (150,181) (150,181} -
Total other financing sources {uses) (141,181) {136,115} 5,066
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other financing
sources (uses) 5 354,231 3 (28.862) 3. (383.003)
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EXHIBIT 9

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
TIF DISTRICTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
CASH BASIS (NON-GAAP) BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Variance from

Final Budget
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 1,437,700 3 1,428,903 $ {8,797)
Sales tax 130,000 202,080 72,080
Investment income 46,400 11,027 {35,373)
Total revenues 1,614,100 1,642,010 27,910
EXPENDITURES
General government 1,117,400 643,424 473,876
Excess of revenues
over expenditures 496,700 998,586 501,886
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 133,815 133,815
Transfers out (839,500) (770,662) 68,838
Total other financing sources {uses) (839,500) (636,847) 202,653
Excess (deficlency) of revenues over
expenditures and other financing
uses 3 {342,800} 3 361,739 $ 704,539
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EXHIBIT 10

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
CASH BASIS {(NON-GAAP) BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Variance from

Final Budget
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Investment income $ 15,000 3 6,998 3 (8,002)
Fines and fees 180,000 319,880 139,880
Other revenue 500 499 {1)
Total revenues 195,500 327,377 131,877
EXPENDITURES
Public safety 277,834 260,354 17,480
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 3 (82.334) & 67,023 3 148,357
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EXHIBIT 11

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
MUNICIPAL BAND FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
CASH BASIS (NON-GAAP) BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Variance from

Final Budget
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Property taxes L 75,000 3 74,417 $ {583)
Investment income 100 57 {43)
Other revenue 3,000 2,489 (511)
Total revenues 78,100 76,963 {1,137)
EXPENDITURES
Culture and recreation 78,294 77,415 879
Peficiency of revenues
over expenditures 3 (184) 3 (452} & (258)
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS

MOTOR FUEL TAX FUND

EXHIBIT 12

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
CASH BASIS (NON-GAAP) BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Year Ended April 30, 2009

Variance from

Final Budget
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Investment income 3 52,525 $ 14,818 3 (37,707)
Intergovernmental;
Motor fuel tax 2,350,000 2,155,941 (194,059)
Other 164,500 158,475 (8,025)
Other revenue 191,675 188,887 (2,688}
Total revenues 2,758,700 2,518,221 (240,479
EXPENDITURES
Highways and streets;
Maintenance of traffic lights
and overpass 2,385,788 1,839,188 546,600
Excess of revenues
over expenditures 372,912 672,033 306,121
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (402,000) (340,27%) 61,721
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures and other
financing uses $ (29,088) 3 338,754 3 367,842
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EXHIBIT 13

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDRULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
CASH BASIS (NON-GAAP) BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended April 30, 2008

Variance from

Final Budget
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 939,147 $ 940,664 $ 1,517
Investment income 15,000 4,554 {10,446)
Total revenues 954 147 945,218 - (8,929)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 146,803 146,803 -
Debt Service:
Principal retirement 2,500,797 2,600,797 -
Interest and fiscal charges 3,245,578 3,243,356 2,222
Total expenditures 5,893,178 5,880,956 2,222
Deficiency of revenues
over expenditures {4,939,031) (4,945 738) (6,707)
CTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in 4,837,024 4,857,408 20,384
Deficiency of revenues over
expenditures and other financing
sources $  (102.007) i (88,330} § {13,677)

104



5oL

FO0TIVE  § 866 rica S 58 3 - 3 Faove0e S 7N T
6.9'L¥0B LI8'ElZ'9 6.9 - 90¥'se8’e ezl
£0.'BBE'D B¥9Z00Y 6.9 - ZGOVEE T gzl
9/6'L¥9'C ZeT'151'T - - ¥5L'060 -

S8E'BLr 124’091 - - gLg'agT -

00889 - - - 008'89 -

SB5'09E 5 1z2'08L % - $ - % 85866 § - %
Po0TIvE % BESFIED g k] 3 - 3 Fo0%E0T 3 E2IT S
8559 [&Tard) - - LBZYE -

£89'06¢ - - - 259'0bE -

0SZ'e5l - - - 0S5.2'est -

Z0L'vEE'e % vPEE'ZOE'S 3 6.9 $ - 3 goE'8ES'E % gzt &

(230l pund pungy pund pung pung
josfald 001 Buissoly j0afoid ypald sjoalfoig lexden
800Z yseqem Jotspa leyden puog ¥00Z
600Z ‘ot (udy

¥l 118IHX3

133HS IONVIVE ONINISINOD

SANNL S1O3r0dd TVLIdVYD HOMVINNON

SIONIT 'WNLYD3a 40 ALID

S3ONYIVE ANNd
aNV S3ILAIEVITIVLIOL

80UR|Rq pUNY [BIO]

paAJasalun
SEIUBIGWINDLUS J0) PBAISESY
:S80UBjRg pung

safliqel| [0l

shusaal pausla(
a|geded S10BRUCT
:sop(Iqer]
SHIONVIVH ONNd ANV S3LLITGVIT

S1IASSY IVI0L

B|gBAIDR) SJUNCIDY
saxel Jaylo
Xe| sajes [edisunp siouwy
sa3|qeal@oey
SIUSLLISAAL PUE USED
$138SY



S} 1IgHX3

5O1%06 & TIETIZg 5 579 - g gt Ged e S gIT 3
LZF DL - €49 {oe'500) 162'208°1 4289
852'0HE'L LLB'ELE'S g 0E'801 SLL'EE0'L (vor's)
£58'/80°LL 0000000l - L¥P'LOE'L (¥65°EL2) -
(50¥'2009) - - (Sig'EEl} (¥65°ELY) -
298'eLe - - zog'zLlL 000°002 -
00¥'ZZE'LL 0oc'000°0kE - 00v'Zeg't - -
(G65'L¥2'E) (621'084'E) ] (270°es2’}) 60962} (#01'g)
Z04°109'D 1G2'808°E - LYL'ESE L ZO5vES'| grLs
0SZ'LE) o2Zb't - vzZa'2zel - -
BOP'ZGL'E 00F'eh0'E - B90'051L - -
#H5'LLE'E SZb'L9L - 6¥8'0.6 Z9G'vES"L arl's
L0L'v08'2 FAANAA 9 va9 Lig'leg’s tr
ZLG'EBD - - - Z15'60 -
284'26 - - - Z0.'26 -
GL2'059'2 - - . 6L2'059'2 -
965" Ly g ze2L'ee g 8 ¥99 $ 29481 ] ¥ir §
I=joL pung pung puni pung pung
joafoud 20 Buissoin 199foud YpalD s)oafoid tenden
800Z yseqep J0Jana lenden puog 00z

6002 '0F [Ldy papug 2eay

YVYIA 40 aN3 'STONVIVE QNN

HVIA 40 ONINNIDZE '(1131430) SIONVIVE aNnd

(sasn) saoinos
Bujpueey Jay)o pue saimypuadxa
Jano sanuanal Jo {Aouspyap) s589Xg

(sasn) saounos Buiaueuy Jayo B)o)

N0 siapsUBl)
u| s18psuel}
spasaold 198

(s3sn) S3DUN0S ONIONYNIZ ¥aHLO

salnjipuadxa Jano
sanusAal Jo (Aouatoyap) ssaoxy

samypuadxa [ejol

sabiteyo [easy pue Jsatau)
Jualwalyal [edipund
H-LIYED BTl |
s}@ans pue sAemybiH
uaung
SIUNLIANIdX3

Sanuanal Bla)

anuaaal layio
$93j pue saul4
[ejuaianobiau)|
SJUBLLSBAL JO BN|BA 4B}
U] 9SE8IIU} 18U PUE BLDIL| JUSW]sanLy
SIANNIATIY

SIONYIVE NN NI STONVHO ONV STUNLIONIdX3 'SANNIATY S0 LNTFWILYLS ONINISWNOD
SANNA SLIArO¥d MVLIdVD HOrvINNON

SIONITI "dNLYDAA 40 ALID



EXHIBIT 16

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
2004 BOND CAPITAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
CASH BASIS (NON-GAAP) BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended April 30, 2009 '

Variance from

Final Budget
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorabhle)
REVENUES
Investment interest 3 100 3 44 3 (56)
EXPENDITURES
Capital projects 6,827 5,148 1,679
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 5 (6,727) $ (5,104) 3 1,623
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EXHIBIT 17

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
CASH BASIS (NON-GAAFP) BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Variance from

Final Budget
Final Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Investment interest $ 57,840 3 18,762 3 (39,078)
Intergovernmental 2,867,000 2,734,087 (132,933}
Fines and fees 10,100 92,782 82,682
Other revenues 17,100 69,505 52,405
Total revenues 2,952,040 2,915,116 {36,924)
EXPENDITURES
Capital projects 3,308,347 1,465,889 1,840,458
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (354,307} 1,449 227 1,803,534
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of assets 200,000 - (200,000)
Transfers in 200,000 200,000 -
Transfers out (473,594) (473,594) -
Total other financing uses {73,594) {273,694) (200,000}
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other financing
sources (Uses) 3 {427,901} $ 1,175,633 3 1,603,534

108



EXHIBIT 18

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
LETTER OF CREDIT PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
CASH BASIS (NON-GAAP) BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Variance from

Final Budget
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Investment Interest 3 - 3 664 $ 664
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Capital projects 2,299,699 1,227,446 1,072,553
Debt Service:
Principal retirement - 150,068 {160,088)
Interest and fiscal charges 250,000 132,824 117,176
Total expenditures 2,549,999 1,510,338 1,039,661
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures {2,548,999) (1,509,674} 1,040,325
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Debt proceeds 800,000 1,322,400 522,400
Transfers in 250,000 172,862 (77,138)
Transfers out - {133,815) (133,815)
Totai other financing sources 1,050,000 1,361,447 311,447
Excess {deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other financing
sources (uses) 3 {1,499 996) 3 (148227 § 1,351,772
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EXHIBIT 18

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINQIS
WABASH CROSSING LETTER OF CREDIT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
CASH BASIS (NON-GAAP) BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Variance from

Final Budget
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Investment interest 5 - 5 6 $ 6
EXPENDITURES
Capital projects 573 - 673
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 3 (673) $ &) b 679
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EXHIBIT 20

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
2008 PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
CASH BASIS (NON-GAAP) BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Variance from

Final Budget
Final Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Investment Interest 3 - 3 8,858 $ 9,858
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Capital projects ’ 1,434,294 600,698 833,596
Debt Service:
Principal retirement 3,042,400 3,042 400 -
Interest and fiscal charges 4,426 4,426 -
Total expenditures 4,481,120 3,647,524 833,596
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures {4,481,120) (3.637,666) 843,454
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Debt proceeds - 10,000,000 10,000,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other financing
sources $ (4481120} $ 6,362,334 3 10,843 454
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NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are established to account for operations: A) that are financed and operated
in @ manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that
the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or B) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred,
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control
accountability, or other purposes.

The Motor Vehicle Parking System Fund is used to account for the construction, operation, and
maintenance of the City-owned parking system.

The Sewer Fund accounts for the construction, operation and maintenance of the city-owned
storm water sewer system.

DCDF Fund accounts for the not-for-profit corporation which finances and subsidizes housing
rehabilitation activities in the City.

The Home Mortgage Fund accounts for the activity of a program for subsidizing the construction
of homes for purchase within designated areas of the City.

The Recycling Fund accounts for the operation of the city-wide residential recycling program.
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Internal Service Funds are established to finance and account for services and commodities
furnished by a designated department or agency to other departments and agencies within a
single governmental unit on a cost reimbursement basis. Amounts expended by the fund are
restored thereto, either from operating earnings or by transfers from other funds, so that the
original fund capital is left intact.

The Fleet Maintenance/ERF Fund accounts for services provided by the City’s garage for repair
and maintenance of motorized vehicles and equipment and for funds transferred from operating
departments for the expenses of operating and replacement of City equipment. Capital outlay
for automotive and other machinery and equipment is from this fund.

The Self Insurance Fund accounts for financial resources, including payroll deductions and the
City's contribution, and expenditures made for payment of medical, non-medical, unemployment
claims, flexible spending program, and the related costs for the programs.

The Management Information Services Fund accounts for services provided by the City's
Management Information Services Division.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINCIS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET AS5ETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Recelvables:
Accounts recelvable
Qther

Inventories
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Machinery and equlpment

l.ess accumulated depreciation
Total properiy, plant and equipment
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liahilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Other accrued fiabllities

Claims payable
Uneamed revenue

Total liabilifies

Net assets:
Invested in capifal assets, net of
related debt
Unrestricted
Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
NET ASSETS

EXHIBIT 24

April 30, 2008
Management
Flast Self Information
Maintenance/ERF Insurance Services Tatal
$ 3,300,555 3 3,234,470 % 1,601,888 $ 8,136,913
2475 690 - 3,165
- 1,536 - 1,536
212,262 - - 212,262
3,615,292 3,236,696 1,601,888 8,363,876
6,752,933 - 1,010,686 7,763,619
2,109,456 - 595,125 2,704,581
4,643,477 - 415,561 5,088,038
5 8,158,769 5 3,236,696 § 2,017,449 $ 13,412,914
k3 16,407 ] - 5 - 5 15,407
56,727 - 52,808 109,536
- 3,491,311 - 3,491,311
u - B6.665 6,665
72,134 3,491,311 58,374 3,622,819
4,843,477 - 415,561 5,059,038
3,443,158 (254,615) 1,542,614 4,731,067
8,086,635 {254 ,615) 1,958,075 9,790,085
3 8,158,769 3 3,236,696 $ 2,017,449 5 13412914
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EXHIBIT 25

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Management
Fleet Self Information
Maintenance/ERF Insurance Services Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 5 3,598,597 3 8,476,026 % 1,516,265 % 13,590,888
Payroll deductions/retiree contributions - 1,860,954 - 1,860,954
Other revenue 157,060 335,078 481 492 619
Tolal operating revenues 3,755,667 10,672,058 1.516.746 15,944,461
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 510,284 - 1,016,449 1,528,743
Contractual services 246,883 559,572 241,762 1,048,217
Supplies and materials 1,045,270 2,000 3,324 1,050,594
Insurance and other charges 270,808 10,303,771 250,877 10,825,457
Depreciation 890,852 - 93,197 584,049
Total operating expenses 2,964,108 10,865,343 1,605,609 15,435,060
Operating income {loss) 791,549 (193,285) (88,863) 509,401
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Investment Interest 38,411 38,439 16,332 93,182
Income (loss) before transfers 829,960 {154,846} (72,831) 602,583
TRANSFERS
Transfers in 3,448,120 - 283,267 3,729,387
Transfers out (3,489,324) {170,400} (283.267) (3,942,991%
Net transfers {43,204) {170,400) - (213,604)
Net income (loss) 786,756 (325,246) (72,531} 388,979
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,299,879 70,631 2 030,606 9,401,116
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR 3 8,086,635 g (254,615) $ 1,958,075 $ 9,790,095
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CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash recelved from charges far services
Cash pald lo suppliers {or goods and services
Cash pald lo employses

Nel cash provided by (used in)
eperaling aclivilles

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash fransfers fram olhes funds
Cash ransfers to other funds

Net cash usad in
noncaplta! financing aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM CGAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Aequisition of propesty, plant and equipment
Proceeds on sale of city property

Net cash used in eapital and
refated finanting activilles

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Invesimeant income

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH, END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY {USED IN} OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)
Ad|usiments {0 reconcile operating income {loss) 1o net cash
provided by {used In) oparating aclivities:
Depreciatian
Gain an disposal of ssels
Efiecls ol changes in eperaling assels and llabilities;
Recelvables
Inveniories
Accounis payable
Other currant llabilities
Uneamed revenue

NET CASH PROVIDED BY {USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Yoar Ended April 30, 2009

EXHIBIT 26

Management
Fleat Self Information
Maintenance/ERF insurarnce Systems Total

5 3,748,409 5 10,672,058 5 1,516,230 ] 15,936,697
{1,584,026) (10,451,444} (495,447} (12,540,816)
(545.716) - {1,035,431) {1.581,147)

1,608,668 220,814 {14,646} 1,814,634
3,446,120 - 263,287 3,729,387
(3,489,324} {170,400} {283,267) {3.942,681)
{43,204} {170,400} - {213,604}

(2,002,487) - - (2,002,497)

18,075 - - 18,075
(1,884,422} - - (1,984 422)

aB.411 38,438 16.332 83,182
(380,547) BB,653 1,664 (290,210}

3,661,102 3145817 1,600,204 8,427,123

] 3,300,555 5 1,234 470 ] 1,601,888 5 8,136,913
§ 791,649 5 (193,285) 5 {88,883) 3 509,401
B&0,852 - 83,187 $84,048

{7,770 - - (7,770)

522 - {516} B

{21,817} - - {21,617}

(8,924} 413,898 - 404,975

(35,422} - (18,582) (54,404)

{522) - 516 8)

3 1,608,668 5 220814 5 (14.648) ] 1,814,634
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Fiduciary Funds are used to account for resources received and held by a governmental unit
as agent or trustee for individuals, private organizations or other governments.

The City has one type of Fiduciary Fund: Pension Trust Fund.

The Fire Pension Fund and the Police Pension Fund account for activities as prescribed by the
Statutes of the State of lllinois.
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EXHIBIT 27

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINCIS

PENSION TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
April 30, 2009
Police Fire
Pension Pension
Fund Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash and short-term investments 3 3,285,772 6,439,507 $ 8,735,279
Taxes receivable 111,400 80,939 202,339
Accrued interest 316,274 162,210 508,484
Long-term investments, at fair value:
U.S. Government cbligations 33,050,754 22,365,259 55,418,013
Mutual funds 14,173,875 14,492 425 28,666,300
Commeon stock 6,700,683 3,062,889 9,763,572
Corporate bonds 1,197,298 1,636,121 2,833,419
Total long-term investments 55,122,610 41,656,694 96,679,304
TOTAL ASSETS $ 58846056 48,279,350 $ 107,125,406
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 58,846,056 48,279,350 $ 107,125,408
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EXHIBIT 28

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINCIS
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Police Fire
Pension Pension
Fund Fund Total
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer % 2,955,911 3 2,977.841 $ 5,933,752
Plan member 1,046,104 783,239 1,829,343
Total contributions 4,002,015 3,761,080 7,763,095
Investment earnings (joss):

interest and dividends 1,778,280 1,351,072 3,129,352
Net decrease in the fair value of investments {5,559,610) (5,879,382) (11,438,992}
Total investment loss (3,781,330) (4,528,310) (8,309,640)

Less investment expense 142,119 97,282 239,401
Net investment loss {3,023,449) (4,625,682) (8,549,041)
Total additions {deductions) 78,566 (864,512) (785,946)

PEDUCTIONS

Benefits and refunds 4,273,594 4,881,160 9,154,754

Administrative expense 48,813 38,793 88,608

Total deductions 4,322 407 4,920,953 9,243,360

Net decrease (4,243,841) (5,785,465) (10,029,306)

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 63,089,897 54,064,815 117,154,712

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

$.58846056 3 48279350  § 107.125406
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Statistical Section

This part of the City of Decatur's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City's overall financial
health.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how
the City's financial performance and well-being have changed over {ime.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most
significant local revenue source.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue
additional debt in the future.

Demegraphic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographics and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the City's financial
activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the City's financial report relates to the
services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented GASB
Statement 34 in 2004, schedules presenting government-wide information include information
beginning in that year.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL PAYERS

Total Water
Fiscal Year Billed

2000 15,084,139
2001 14,725,556
2002 12,814,848
2003 10,213,394
2004 9,579,004
2005 11,271,758
2006 11,206,814
2007 11,090,969
2008 11,098,762
2009 11,547,881

ALL AVAILABLE YEARS

Industrial

6,082,481
6,083,537
5,899,731
5,714,968
6,052,058

Top Users

Commercial Government

138,366
140,089
117,977
197,870
186,708

280,029
306,877
291,625
315,586
316,887

Note: Disclosure of principle payers is prohibited. Due to accounting system conversion
during FY04, data is not available prior to FY05.
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Percentage

of Total

57.7%
58.3%
56.9%
56.1%
56.8%
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE
OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

LAST TEN YEARS
REAL PROPERTY
DIRECT RATE
RATIO OF ASSESSED PER $100

ASSESSED ESTIMATED VALUE TO TOTAL ASSESSED

TAX YEAR VALUE ACTUAL VALUE ACTUAL VALUE (1} VALUATION
1998 $613,567,895 $ 1,840,703,685 33.33% 1.3444
1899 631,046,296 1,803,138,888 33.33% 1.3716
2000 639,069,887 1,917,209,661 33.33% 1.3939
2001 691,016,351 2,073,049,053 33.33% 1.2857
2002 723,424,819 2,170,274,457 33.33% 1.2796
2003 807,265,386 2,421,796,158 33.33% 1.1925
2004 794,049,821 2,382,149,463 33.33% 1.2717
2005 828,097,689 2,487,293,067 33.33% 1.2700
2006 860,504,122 2,581,612,366 33.33% 1.2418
2007 893,386,367 2,680,158,101 33.33% 1.2324

{1) State law prescribes an assessment ratio of 33,33% of actual value

Source: Macon County Clerk. There is a two year lag, thus tax year 2008 real estate taxes
are collected during fiscal year 2010,

Note: This schedule is being provided as a supplement to the property tax information.
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Taxes Assessed:

Taxes Due:

Payable:

Tax Sale:

Redemption:

Tax Deed:

CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
TAX INFORMATION
April 30, 2009

The owner of property on January 1, in any year, is liable for taxes for that
calendar year.

Current taxes on real property may be paid in two equal installments. The first
installment is due no later than June 1st, and bears interest at the rate of 1 1/2%
per month after June 1st, until paid or forfeited. The second installment is
payable no later than September 1st, and bears interest at the rate of 1 1/2%
per month after September 1st until paid or forfeited.

The current City property taxes are payable at the Office of the County
Treasurer, who is also the County Collector,

Application for judgment and sale in cases where taxes are not paid is made
during the month of October. A Monday in October is fixed for the date of the
sale by the County Treasurer. Tax bills are sold to the bidder who offers to pay
the accumulated amount of the tax and to charge thereon the lowest rate of
interest. The maximum of interest provided by law is 18% every six months for
a period of two years. The purchaser of the tax bill is given a certificate of
purchase for each piece of real estate.

Redemption may be made by the owner by payment of the tax bill in full to the
County Clerk including 18% penalties, plus $4.00 service charge at any time
before issuance of tax deed.

Two years and six months from the day of the annual tax sale, the holder of a
certificate of purchase which has not been redeemed may, by fulfilling the
statutory procedures and paying all subsequent tax bills, obtain a tax deed.
This deed must be issued before the expiration of seven years after the annual
tax sale or the certificate becomes void.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN YEARS

Business-Type

Governmental Activities Activities
Total Percentage

Fiscal General Compensated Primary of Assessed Per
Year  Obligation Absences . Loan Government Valuation Capita
2000 345435730  $1,920,537 $47,356,267 7.72% $579
2001 42,767,124 2,168,229 44 935,353 7.12% 549
2002 41,054,825 2,391,005 43,445,830 6.80% 531
2003 44,313,428 2,443,605 7,172,169 53,929,202 7.80% 659
2004 55,823,558 2,419,131 6,823,796 65,066,485 8.89% 795
2005 55,346,242 2,423,199 6,535,592 64,305,033 7.97% 786
2006 53,172,401 2,666,422 6,238,954 61,977,777 7.81% 757
2007 53,565,637 2,566,235 5,933,637 62,065,509 7.49% 758
2008 53,028,412 2,616,781 12,844,386 68,488,579 7.96% 837
2009 58,703,783 2,869,180 12,520,940 74,093,803 8.25% 905
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN YEARS
Percentage of
Estimated

General Less: Amounts Actual Taxable
Fiscal Obligation Available in Debt Value of Per
Year Bonds Service Fund Total Property Capita
2000 % 45435730 % 4,124,939 $ 41,310,791 2.24% 5 505
2001 42,726,337 1,309,389 41,416,948 2.18% 506
2002 41,054,825 1,371,038 39,683,787 2.07% 485
2003 39,413,428 1,605,397 37,808,031 1.82% 462
2004 50,168,424 884,830 49,283,594 2.27% 602
2005 47,946,433 853,134 47,093,299 1.94% 575
2006 45,882,592 B68,037 45,014,555 1.89% 550
2007 43,774,249 380,993 43,393,256 1.74% 530
2008 41,678,968 372,473 41,306,495 1.60% 5056

2009 49,474,407 205,337 49,269,070 1.84% 602
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT

April 30, 2009
Percentage
of Debt
Applicable
Debt to the City
QOutstanding of Decatur
DIRECT DEBT
City of Decatur b 58,703,783 100.00%
OVERLAPPING DEBT
Decatur Park District 11,292,000 99.00%
Decatur School District #61 14,075,000 02.00%
Argenta School District #1 8,555,000 28.00%
Maroa/Forsyth School District 24,878,000 6.71%
Meridian School District #15 315,000 17.60%
Mt. Zion School District #3 9,060,000 7.00%
Public Building Commission 7,725,000 60.60%
Richland Community College 2,385,000 44.,00%
Sangamon Valley #9 25,000 0.20%
Warrensburg School District #11 12,955,000 37.00%
TOTAL OVERLAPPING DEBT 91,265,000 43.18%
TOTAL DIRECT AND
OVERLAPPING DEBT 3 149,968,783 65.42%

Per Capita Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 1,832

Source: QOutstanding Debt - Individual Taxing Entities
Percentage within Decatur - Macon County Clerk
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City of
Decatur's
Share of
Debt

58,703,783

11,179,080
12,949,000
2,395,400
1,669,314
53,550
634,200
4,681,350
1,049,400
50
4,793,350

39,404,694

$

98,108,477
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
SCHEDRULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended April 30, 2609

Grantor's
FEDERAL GRANTOR /PROGRAM TITLE CFDA Number Number
U.S. Department of Housing
And Urban Development
Direct Progroms:
Community Development Block
Grunts/Entitlement Grants 14.218 B-08-MC-17-2008

Subtotn] Community Development Block
Grants/Entitlement Grants

HOME Investment in Affordable
Grants/Entitfement Grants 14,239 M-0B-MC-17-0203

Subtotal HOME Investment in Affordable
Grants/Entitlement Grants

Total LS, Department of Housing nand Urban Development

U.S. Department of Justice
Passed-through lllingis Criminal
Justice Information Authority:
Project Sufety Neighborhoods 16.744 107026
Subtotal Pussed-throogh Hlinois Criminal
Justice Information Autharity

Direct Programs:

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16,738 2008-DIBX-0186
Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 2007-DJBX-0186
Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 2006-DIBX-0691
Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 16.738 2005-DIBX -0691

Subtotal Edward Byrne Memorial Grant

Grant 1o Encourage Arrest Policies 16.390 2008-WEAX-(021
and Enforcement of Protection Orders
Snbtotal Grant to Encourage Arrest Policies
aod Enforcement of Protection Orders

Weed and Seed 16.395 N/A
Subtotsl Grant for Weed and Sced

Tatsl 1.S. Depariment of Justice

U. 8. Department of Transportation
Passed-through Nlinois Depariment

of ‘Fransportation:
Urban Corridor Revitalization Grant 20.205 06T0145
Highway Planning Grant 20.205 N/A
Highway Planning Grant 20.205 702003

Subtotal Highway Planning
nad Construetion Cluster

[48

Federal
Expenditures

Pussed Through
1o Subrecipients

5 2,330,242

2,330,242

363,243

198,498

363,243

198,498

2,893,485

198,498

12,680

12.680

28,725
39,764
26,403

1,959

96.851

7433

7.453

44,966

44,966

161,930

14,036
188,488
172,490

375,014




FEDERAL GRANTOR / PROGRAM TITLE

Alcohol Traffic Safety and Drunk Driving Prevention
Occupant Protection TralTic Safety
Traffic Safety
Mini Mobilization
Occupant Protection Traffic Safety
Subtotal Highway Safety
Cluster

Subtotal Passcd-through Ilinois Department
of Transportation:

Direct Programs:
Federnl Transit Capital Investment Grants
Federal Transit Capital Investment Grants
Federal Transit Capitat Investmenl Grants
Federal Transit Capital Investment Grants

Subitetal Federal Transit Cnpital
Investment Cluster

Total U.S. Department of Transportation

U.S, Depurtment of Homeland Security

Passed-through U.S Fire Administration
of Federal Emergency Management Agency:
2006 Ice Storm Disuster Relief

Subtotal Passed-through U.S, Fire Administration
of Federnl Emergency Management Agency

‘Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

CFDA Number

20,601
20.602
20.602
20.602
20.609

20.507
20,507
20.507
20,307

97.036

Grantor's
Number

ALB-1410-473
5P8-1410-080
5P9-1410-121
OP8-1410-474
oP-1410-122

11.-90-0624
1L-90-0480
IL-90-0453
IL-50-0542

FEMA-1681-115
-18823

Federal

4,108
5,082
11,636
6,435
15,595

Passed Through
to Subrecipients

42,876

417,890

573,398
6,976
15,945
100,451

696.770

1,114,660

23,023

23.023

23,023

4,193,118

3 198,498

This schedule should be read only in connection with the accompanying nole to the schedule.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
April 30, 2009
NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting.

NOTE 2 — NON-CASH ASSISTANCE

The City did not receive any federal non-cash assistance during the fiscal year ended April 30,
2009,
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il Gunderson LLP

Certified Public Accountants & Cansultants

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

The Mayor and City Council
City of Decatur, lllinois

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major. fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Decatur,
linois as of and for the year ended April 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the City of
Decatur's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 21,
2009. We did not audit the financial statements of the Civic Center Authority, which is included
as a discretely presented component unit, but it was audited by other auditors. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies )
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as
discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that
we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's ability to
initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a
misstatement of the entity's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be
prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control. We consider the deficiency described in
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs to be a significant deficiency in
internal controf over financial reporting (Finding 2009-01).
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control,

QOur consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, We believe that
finding 2009-01 is a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial staiement amounts. However,
providing an opinicn on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards. We noted certain other matters that we have reported to management of the City in
a separate letter dated October 21, 2009.

The City of Decatur's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and guestioned costs. We did not audit the City of
Decatur’s response, and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, members of the City

Council, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

%W/_LA

Danville, lllinois
October 21, 2009
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with Requirements
Applicable to Each Major Program and on Internal Control
Over Compliance in Accordance with
OMB Circular A-133

The Mayor and City Council
City of Decatur, lllinois

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of City of Decatur, INlinois (City) with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year
ended April 30, 2009. The City's major federal programs are identified in the summary of
auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each
of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States: and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our
audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those reguirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to

above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended April 30,
2008.
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Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to federal programs. in planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the entity's
internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses as defined below.
However, as discussed below, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

A control deficiency, in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or
operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's
ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control. We consider
the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and gquestioned costs as Finding 2009-02 to be a significant deficiency.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal
control. We believe the significant deficiency, Finding 2009-02, described above is a material
weakness.

The City's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City's response and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on it,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, members of the City

Council, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Clgezn. iorectosaea L) P

Danville, lllinois
October 21, 2009
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued:_ungualified gpinion

Internal control over financial reporting:

» Material weakness(es) identified? X _Yes ___No
* Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses? __Yes x__None reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? __Yes x_No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:;

« Material weakness(es) identified? X_Yes ___No
+ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered
to be material weakness(es)? __Yes x___None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs:___unqualified opinion

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with section 510(a) of
OMB Circular A-1337 X Yes ___No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

20.507 Federal Transit Formula Grant
14,239 HOME Investment in Affordable Grants/Entitlement Grants

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $ 300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X _Yes __No

Section Il ~ Financial Statement Findings

FINDING NO. 2009-01 —~ FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION, INCLUDING CASH
TO ACCRUAL BASIS ADJUSTMENTS

Criteria or Specific Requirement: Financial Statement Preparation, Including Cash to Accrual Basis
Adjustments.

Condition: The City engages Clifton Gunderson to assist in preparing the necessary cash to
accrual basis adjustments and its financial statements and accompanying disclosures. However,
as independent auditors, Clifton Gundersen cannot be considered part of the City’s internal control
system.

Context: The City Council and management share the ultimate responsibility for the City’s internal
control system.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
' Year Ended April 30, 2009

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings (Continued)

FINDING NO. 2009-01 — FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION, INCLUDING CASH
TO ACCRUAL BASIS ADJUSTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Effect: While it is acceptable to outsource various accounting functions, the responsibility for
internal control cannot be outsourced.

Cause: Currently, the City's personnel do not have sufficient financial statement reporting and
accounting knowledge to perform a review of the City's financial statements and related disclosures
including the necessary cash to accrual basis adjustments, to provide a high level of assurance that
any potential material omissions or other errors would be identified and corrected.

Recommendation: The City should continue to analyze the cost versus benefit of enhancing the
internal control system.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: The City's management is aware of
the need for the knowledge necessary to complete the necessary cash fo accrual basis
adjustments, financial statements, including disclosures in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and will continue to monitor the cost benefit in regards to the issue.

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

FINDING NO. 2009-02 - MATCHING REPORT GENERATED FROM THE IDIS SYSTEM DOES
NOT PROPERLY REFLECT PERCENTAGE BEING MATCHED

Criteria: The City must match at least 25% of contributions of HOME funds drawn down during the
fiscal year.

Condition: The City’s matching report does not properly reflect the correct percentage of matching.
As of April 30, 2009 the report reflects matching of only 12.5%.

Context: During compliance testing of the HOME program we reviewed the match report generated
by the IDIS system noting the report showed matching of 12.5% when in fact they have matching in
excess of the 25% compliance requirement.

Effect: Despite being in compliance by matching 25% of HOME funds drawn down during the fiscal
year, the City's IDIS match report incorrectly reflects 12,5% being matched, which makes it appear
the City is not in compliance. Noncompliance with grant terms can lead to loss of grant funding.

Cause: The City stated a glitch in the reporting feature of the IDIS system caused the error.
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CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended April 30, 2009

Section Il - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costis

FINDING NO. 2002-02 — MATCHING REPORT GENERATED FROM THE IDIS SYSTEM DOES
NOT PROPERLY REFLECT PERCENTAGE BEING MATCHED
(CONTINUED)

Recommendation: The City should closely monitor maich reports generated from the IDIS
system to ensure they are accurate and to ensure compliance with matching requirements,
Proper internal controls will reduce the risk of noncompliance in the future over the matching
reguirement.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: The City will contact the IDIS

technical staff to resolve report issues and make necessary changes to the report so that it will
properly reflect the 25% maich.

157



CITY OF DECATUR, ILLINOIS
SCHEDULE OF STATUS OF PRIOR FINDINGS
Year Ended April 30, 2008

Finding No. 2008-1

FINANCIAL STATEMENT PREPARATION, INCLUDING CASH TO ACCRUAL BASIS
ADJUSTMENTS

Condition: The City engages Clifton Gunderson to assist in preparing the necessary cash to
accrual basis adjustments and its financial statements and accompanying disclosures. However,

as independent auditors, Clifton Gundersen cannot be considered part of the City's internal control
system.

Condition has not been corrected. This finding is repeated.
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